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Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Income

Revenue

Recurrent revenue

Net rate and utility charges

Fees and charges

Interest received

Other recurrent income

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
Total recurrent revenue

Capital revenue
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations

Total capital revenue

Total income

Expenses

Employee benefits

Materials and services

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation
Total recurrent expenses

Capital expenses

Total Expenses

Net recurrent result

Net result

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to net result

Increase/(decrease) in asset revaluation surplus
Total other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Note

3(a)
3(b)
3(c)
3(d)
4(a)

4(b)

20

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
138,701 138,619 138,781 138,702
19,338 23,630 10,255 11,807
4,722 5,422 4,424 5,111
20,116 13,071 19,689 11,931
13,081 10,655 13,081 10,655
195,958 191,397 186,230 178,206
21,553 31,487 21,553 31,487
21,553 31,487 21,553 31,487
217,511 222,884 207,783 209,693
(56,332) (55,014) (52,683) (51,196)
(74,397) (75,501) (72,551) (72,060)
(8,924) (11,497) (6,711) (9,293)
(45,502) (46,323) (43,038) (43,547)
(185,155) (188,335) (174,983) (176,096)
(19,632) (8,001) (19,642) (8,002)
(204,787) (196,336) (194,625) (184,098)
10,803 3,062 11,247 2,110
12,724 26,548 13,158 25,595
111,130 125,578 111,130 125,578
111,130 125,578 111,130 125,578
123,854 152,127 124,288 151,173




Statement
as at 30 June 2017

of Financial Position

Note
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9
Trade and other receivables 10
Inventories
Land Purchased for development and sale 1
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Investment property 13
Property, plant and equipment 14
Intangible assets
Investment in controlled entity 12
Trade and other receivables 10
Total non-current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15
Borrowings - interest bearing 17
Borrowings - interest free 18
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings - interest bearing 17
Borrowings - interest free 18
Provisions 19
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net community assets
Community equity
Retained surplus
Asset revaluation surplus 20
Reserves 21

Total community equity

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

120,375 106,201 108,479 95,009
26,063 27,546 25,958 26,745
2,478 2,695 2,478 2,695
300 191 300 191
149,216 136,633 137,215 124,640
4,712 5,510 4,712 5,510
2,319,998 2,208,637 2,229,697 2,116,084
397 612 397 612
. - 71,854 71,854
- - 33,716 35,396
2,325,107 2,214,759 2,340,376 2,229,456
2,474,323 2,351,392 2,477,591 2,354,096
21,380 18,624 20,448 17,598
8,587 7,786 8,586 7,776
484 467 484 467
30,451 26,877 29,518 25,841
123,350 131,979 123,350 131,979
5,027 5,511 5,027 5,511
9,947 10,807 9,941 10,774
138,324 148,297 138,318 148,264
168,775 175,174 167,836 174,105
2,305,548 2,176,218 2,309,755 2,179,991
1,419,895 1,399,050 1,410,150 1,388,871
794,818 683,688 808,770 697,640
90,835 93,480 90,835 93,480
2,305,548 2,176,218 2,309,755 2,179,991

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

81



82

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Consolidated

Balance as at 1 July 2016
Found assets first recognised
Restated balance as at 1 July 2016

Net operating result

Other comprehensive income for the year:
Increase / (decrease) in asset revaluation surplus

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total capital revenue
Transfers to / (from) capital
Transfers to / (from) reserves

Total transfers to / (from) reserves

Balance as at 30 June 2017

Balance as at 1 July 2015
Found assets first recognised
Restated balance as at 1 July 2015

Net operating result

Other comprehensive income for the year:
Increase / (decrease) in asset revaluation surplus

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total capital revenue
Transfers to / (from) capital
Transfers to / (from) reserves

Total transfers to / (from) reserves

Balance as at 30 June 2016

Note

14

20

21
21

14

20

21
21

Retained Asset Reserves Total
surplus revaluation
surplus
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,399,050 683,688 93,480 2,176,218
5,476 - - 5,476
1,404,526 683,688 93,480 2,181,694
12,724 - - 12,724
- 111,130 - 111,130
12,724 111,130 - 123,854
(20,645) - 20,645 -
23,290 - (23,290) -
2,645 - (2,645) -
1,419,895 794,818 90,835 2,305,548
1,368,252 558,110 92,353 2,018,715
5,377 - - 5,377
1,373,629 558,110 92,353 2,024,092
26,548 - - 26,548
- 125,578 - 125,578
26,548 125,578 - 152,126
(19,872) - 19,872 -
18,745 - (18,745) -
(1,127) - 1,127 -
1,399,050 683,688 93,480 2,176,218




Statement of Changes in Equity continued
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Council
Retained Asset Reserves Total
surplus revaluation
surplus
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance as at 1 July 2016 1,388,871 697,640 93,480 2,179,991
Found assets first recognised 14 5,476 - - 5,476
Restated balance as at 1 July 2016 1,394,347 697,640 93,480 2,185,467
Net operating result 13,158 - - 13,158
Other comprehensive income for the year
Increase / (decrease) in asset revaluation surplus 20 - 111,130 - 111,130
Total comprehensive income for the year 13,158 111,130 - 124,288
Total capital revenue
Transfers to / (from) capital 21 (20,645) - 20,645 -
Transfers to / (from) reserves 21 23,290 (23,290) -
Total transfers to / (from) reserves 2,645 - (2,645) -
Balance as at 30 June 2017 1,410,150 808,770 90,835 2,309,755
Balance as at 1 July 2015 1,359,026 572,062 92,353 2,023,441
Found assets first recognised 14 5,377 - - 5,377
Restated balance as at 1 July 2015 1,364,403 572,062 92,353 2,028,818
Net operating result 25,595 - - 25,595
Other comprehensive income for the year
Increase / (decrease) in asset revaluation surplus 20 - 125,578 - 125,578
Total comprehensive income for the year 25,595 125,578 - 151,173
Total capital revenue
Transfers to / (from) capital 21 (19,872) - 19,872 -
Transfers to / (from) reserves 21 18,745 - (18,745) -
Total transfers to / (from) reserves (1,127) - 1,127 -
Balance as at 30 June 2016 1,388,871 697,640 93,480 2,179,991
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Statement of Cash Flow

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers and employees

Interest received
Rental income
Non capital grants and contributions 4(a)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 28
Cash flow from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4(b)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 8
Payment for intangible assets

Net cash outflow from investing activities
Cash flow from financing activities

Borrowing costs
Repayment of borrowings 17,18

Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
held

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 9

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
189,968 182,589 180,412 171,737
(132,795) (144,315) (126,042) (136,044)
57,173 38,274 54,370 35,693
4,722 5,422 4,424 5,111
645 701 645 701
13,081 10,655 13,081 10,655
75,621 55,052 72,520 52,160
(62,447) (55,778) (62,089) (54,839)
17,190 25,941 17,190 25,941
641 845 589 822
(33) (56) (33) (56)
(44,649) (29,048) (44,343) (28,132)
(8,236) (9,381) (6,154) (7,278)
(8,562) (22,946) (8,553) (22,946)
(16,798) (32,327) (14,707) (30,224)
14,174 (6,323) 13,470 (6,196)
106,201 112,524 95,009 101,205
120,375 106,201 108,480 95,009




Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

1 Significant Accounting Policies
1.01 Basis of Preparation

These general purpose financial statements for the period 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local
Government Act 2009 and the Local Government Regulation 2012 .

These general purpose financial statements comply with all accounting standards and interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board
(AASB) that are relevant to Council's operations and effective for the current reporting period. Because the Council is a not-for-profit entity and the
Australian Accounting Standards include requirements for not-for-profit entities which are inconsistent with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), to the extent these inconsistencies are applied, these financial Statements do not comply with IFRS.

The main impacts are the offsetting of revaluation and impairment gains and losses within a class of assets, and the timing of the recognition of non-
reciprocal grant revenue.

These financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain classes of property, plant and equipment and
investment property which are measured at fair value and land held for sale which is measured at fair value less cost of disposal.

Recurrent/Capital Classification

Revenue and expenditure are presented as "recurrent” or "capital" in the Statements of Comprehensive Income on the following basis:

The fair value of all Council infrastructure was determined by independent valuer, Assetic Pty Ltd with a desktop valuation effective 1 July 2015 as part of
transitioning to a new asset register. Water and sewerage infrastructure assets was also comprehensively valued by APV Valuers and Asset Management
effective 30 June 2016. Roads, drainage, and transport infrastructure were also fair valued comprehensively by Assetic Pty Ltd effective 30 June, 2016. All
assets were valued using written down current replacement cost. This valuation comprises the asset's current replacement cost (CRC) less accumulated
depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset. Council first determined
the gross cost of replacing the full service potential of the asset and then adjusted this amount to take account of the expired service potential of the asset.

Capital Revenue includes grants and subsidies received which are tied to specific projects for the replacement or upgrade of existing non-current assets
and/or investments in new assets. It also includes non-cash contributions which are usually infrastructure assets received from developers.

The following transactions are classified as either "Capital Income" or "Capital Expenses" depending on whether they result in accounting gains or losses:

¢ disposal of non-current assets
¢ discount rate adjustments to restoration provisions

¢ revaluations of investment property and property, plant and equipment

All other revenue and expenses have been classified as "recurrent".

1.02 Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all entities controlled by the Gladstone Regional Council as at 30 June 2017 and
the results of all controlled entities for the year then ended, where material. The Gladstone Regional Council and its controlled entity together form the
economic entity which is referred to in these financial statements as the consolidated entity.

In the process of reporting the Gladstone Regional Council as a consolidated entity, all transactions with entities controlled by the Council have been
eliminated. In addition, the accounting policies of all controlled entities have been adjusted, where necessary, on consolidation to ensure that the financial
report of the consolidated entity is prepared using accounting policies that are consistent with those of the Gladstone Regional Council. Information on
controlled entities is included in Note 12.

1.03 Constitution

The Gladstone Regional Council is constituted under the Queensland Local Government Act 2009 and is domiciled in Australia.
1.04 Date of Authorisation

The financial statements were authorised for issue on the date they were submitted to the Auditor-General for final signature. This is the date the
management certificate is signed.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

1.05 Currency

Council uses the Australian Dollar as its functional currency and its presentation currency.

1.06 Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards

In the current year, Council adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB)
that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current reporting period. The adoption of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations has not
resulted in any material changes to Council's accounting policies.

This year Council has applied AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures for the first time. As a result Council has disclosed more information about related parties
and transactions with those related parties. This information is presented in note 31.

At the date of authorisation of the financial report, some Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective.
Those standards have not been applied in these financial statements. Council will implement them when they are effective. The standards that are expected
to have a material impact upon council's future financial statements are:

Standard and impact Date Council will apply
the standard

AASB 9 Financial Instruments

This replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement . 01-Jul-18
The main impact of AASB 9, is to change the requirements for the classification, measurement and

disclosures associated with financial assets.

Under the new requirements the four current categories of financial assets stipulated in AASB 139 will be

replaced with two measurement categories: fair value and amortised cost and financial assets will only be

able to be measured at amortised cost where very specific conditions are met.

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities and AASB
2016-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-
for-Profit Entities

AASB 15 will replace AASB 18 Revenue , AASB 111 Construction Contracts and a number of Interpretations. 01-Jul-19
AASB 2016-8 provides Australian requirements and guidance for not-for-profit entities in applying AASB 9 and AASB

15, and AASB 1058 will replace AASB 1004 Contributions.

Together they contain a comprehensive and robust framework for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of

income including revenue from contracts with customers.

Council is still reviewing the way that revenue is measured and recognised to identify whether AASB 15 will have a
material impact. To date potential identifiable impacts as at reporting date are as follows:

e Grants received to construct non-financial assets controlled by Council will be recognised as a liability, and
subsequently recognised progressively as revenue as the performance obligations under the grant are satisfied.
At present, such grants are recognised as revenue upfront.

¢ Under the new standards, other grants presently recognised as revenue upfront may be eligible to be
recognised as revenue progressively as the associated performance obligations are satisfied, but only if the
associated performance obligations are enforceable & sufficiently specific. Council is yet to evaluate its existing
grant arrangements as to whether revenue from those grants could be deferred under the new requirements.



1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

1.06 Adoption of New and Revised Accounting Standards (cont'd)

Standard and impact (cont'd) Date Council will apply
the standard

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities and AASB
2016-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-
for-Profit Entities (cont'd)

¢ Grants that are not enforceable and/or not sufficiently specific will not qualify for deferral, and continue to be
recognised as revenue as soon as they are controlled. Council receives several grants for which there are no
sufficiently specific performance obligations - these grants are expected to continue being recognised as
revenue upfront assuming no change to the current grant arrangements.

¢ Depending on the respective contractual terms, the new requirements of AASB 15 may potentially result in a
change to the timing of revenue from sales of services such that some revenue may need to be deferred to a
later reporting period to the extent that the Council has received cash but has not met its associated
performance obligations (such amounts would be reported as a liability in the meantime). Council is yet to
complete an analysis of our existing arrangements for sale of services and the impact, if any, on revenue
recognition.

¢ Council currently recognises amounts received for pre-paid rates as revenue in the year in which it is received.
Under AASB 1058, rates received in advance will be required to be recognised as a liability until the rates levy is
calculated.

AASB 16 Leases

Council has some leases that are currently not recognised within our Statement of Financial Position and may need 01-Jul-19
to be included when this standard comes into effect.

A lease liability will initially be measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term.

A corresponding right-of-use asset will also be recognised over the lease term.

Based on Council's current leases, we do not anticipate any material changes arising from this standard.

At the date of authorisation of the financial report, the remaining new or amended Australian Accounting Standards with future commencement dates are
not likely to have a material impact on the financial Statements.

1.07 Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of Council's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the following financial statements notes:
¢ Investment property - Note 13
¢ Valuation and depreciation of property, plant and equipment - Note 14
¢ Impairment of non-current assets - Note 14
® Provisions - Note 19

¢ Contingent liabilities - Note 23

The estimates and assumptions that have the potential to cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are referred to in the appropriate notes to the financial statements.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies contfinued

1.08 Inventories

Stores and raw materials held for resale are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value and include, where applicable, direct material, direct labour
and an appropriate portion of variable and fixed overheads. Costs are assigned on the basis of weighted average cost.
Inventories held for distribution are:

e goods to be supplied at no or nominal charge; and

¢ goods to be used for the provision of services at no or nominal, charge.

These goods are valued at cost, adjusted, when applicable, for any loss of service potential.

Council does not recognise treated water as inventory as raw and untreated water belongs to the Gladstone Area Water Board (Board). Council purchases
treated water from the Board which is stored in a number of reservoirs prior to delivery to customers.

1.09 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Council recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statements of Financial Position when, and only when, Council becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Gladstone Regional Council has categorised and measured the financial assets and financial liabilities held at balance date as follows:

Financial Assets
e Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 9)
* Receivables - Measured at amortised cost (Note 10)

Financial Liabilities
e Payables - Measured at amortised cost (Note 15)
¢ Borrowings - Measured at amortised cost (Note 17 and Note 18)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately from each other and offsetting has not been applied.
The fair value of financial instruments is determined as follows:

¢ The fair value of cash and cash equivalents and non-interest bearing monetary financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts and are not disclosed separately.

¢ The fair value of borrowings, as disclosed in Note 17 to the accounts, is determined by reference to published price quotations in an active market
and/or by reference to pricing models and valuation techniques. It reflects the value of the debt if the Council repaid it in full at balance date. As it is the
intention of the Council to hold its borrowings for their full term, no adjustment provision is made in these accounts.

¢ The fair value of trade receivables approximates the amortised cost less any impairment.

¢ The fair value of payables approximates the amortised cost.

Gladstone Regional Council does not recognise financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value in the Statements of Financial Position.

All other disclosures relating to the measurement and financial risk management of financial instruments are included in Note 29.



1 Significant Accounting Policies contfinued

1.10 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with a cost or other value exceeding $10,000 are recognised as intangible assets in the financial statements; items with a lesser value being
expensed.

Expenditure on research activities relating to internally-generated intangible assets is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Costs associated with the development of computer software are capitalised and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of expected benefit to
Council.

Amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted where appropriate. Council
has determined that software has a finite life estimated at 5 to 10 years. Straight line amortisation has been used with no residual value.

1.11 Rounding and Comparatives

Amounts included in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest $1,000 unless otherwise stated. Comparative information has been restated
where necessary to be consistent with disclosures in the current reporting period.

1.12 Taxation

Income of local authorities and public authorities is exempt from Commonwealth taxation except for Fringe Benefits Tax and Goods and Services Tax ('GST').
The net amount of GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office ('ATO') or payable to the ATO is shown as an asset or liability respectively.

The controlled entity of the Council pays an income tax equivalent to the Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 .

Where an activity of the controlled entity of the Council is subject to the tax equivalents regime, the income tax expense is calculated on the operating
surplus adjusted for permanent differences between taxable and accounting income. These transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.

The Council pays payroll tax to the Queensland Government in relation to the following activities:
* cemeteries

® sewerage
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2 Analysis of Results by Function

2(a) Component Functions of Council

The activities relating to Council's functions reported on in Note 2 (b) - Analysis of Results by Function are as follows:

Office of the CEO

This division provides for executive management of Gladstone Regional Council and includes the Mayor, Executive Services, Governance, People and
Performance and Elected Members. The objective of this division is to provide high level executive support to the elected members, provide strategic direction
for the organisation and support the personnel management functions of the various directorates of Council.

Finance

The objective of the Finance division is to provide efficient and effective accounting and financial support to the organisation in a manner which supports and
enhances the business performance of Council.

Finance is responsible for all financial matters within Council including, Corporate Performance & Reporting, Employee Entitlement Recoveries, Finance & Risk,
Procurement, and Rating & Revenue Management along with providing Disaster Coordination for the Gladstone region.

Corporate and Community Services

Corporate and Community Services comprises the corporate support functions of council. The corporate functions include Information Technology, Customer
Service, Corporate Property and Fleet Management, Community Relations, and Community Services (Libraries, Sports and Recreation, Performing Arts, Arts and
Heritage).

These functions provide timely and quality information and services to Council to ensure the effective delivery of cultural, health, welfare, recreational, and
community services to the Region.

Engineering Services

The Engineering Services division includes Road Services, Technical Services, Waste Services, Water Services and the Call Centre. The objective of this division is
to provide, manage and develop Roads, Water and Sewerage Infrastructure and Waste Management facilities that service the current and future demands of
the Region.

Planning and Environment

The objective of the Planning and Environment division is to develop and administer local laws, monitor and enforce regulatory obligations under relevant
legislation and local laws, enable sustainable development and economic growth, and manage land in the Gladstone Regional Council area.

This objective is achieved by managing the approval processes for development and building activities within the region, maintaining a safe and clean region by
enforcement of local laws and pest management, active participation with peak bodies, and maintaining public amenities and Cemeteries.



2 Analysis of Results by Function continued
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3 Revenue Analysis

(a) Rate and utility charges

Where rate monies are received prior to the commencement of the rating/levying period, the amount is recognised as revenue in the period in which they
are received, otherwise rates are recognised at the commencement of the rating period.

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Rate and utility charges
General rates 83,023 82,670 83,103 82,753
Water 15,390 15,033 15,390 15,033
Water consumption, rental and sundries 14,436 15,865 14,436 15,865
Sewerage 29,685 28,895 29,685 28,895
Waste management 7,883 7,831 7,883 7,831
Total rates and utility charge revenue 150,417 150,294 150,497 150,377
Less: Discounts (10,979) (10,981) (10,979) (10,981)
Less: Concessions and pensioner remissions (717) (694) (717) (694)
Less: Concealed water concessions (20) - (20) -
138,701 138,619 138,781 138,702

(b) Fees and charges

Fees and charges are recognised upon unconditional entitlement to the funds. Generally this is upon lodgement of the relevant applications or documents,
issuing of the infringement notice or when the service is provided.

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Fees and charges
Animal impounding fees 75 86 75 86
Building and development fees 1,934 2,394 1,934 2,394
Fees and charges 707 620 707 620
Licences and registration 613 615 613 615
Waste management fees - tipping fees 6,574 7,561 6,574 7,561
Other fees and charges 351 531 352 531
Airport fees and charges 9,084 11,823 - -

19,338 23,630 10,255 11,807




3 Revenue Analysis continued

(c) Interest received
Interest

Interest received from term deposits is accrued over the term of the investment.

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Interest received
Interest received from investments 3,868 4,636 3,570 4,325
Interest from overdue rates and utility charges 854 786 854 786
4,722 5,422 4,424 5,111

(d) Other recurrent income

Dividends

Dividends are recognised once they are formally declared by the directors of the controlled entity. A dividend was declared to be paid to Council to the value

of at least 50% of the after tax net profit for the preceding year, in accordance with the Statement of Corporate Intent.

Rental Income

Rental revenue from investment and other property is recognised as income on a periodic straight line basis over the lease term.

Sales Revenue

Sales of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer, generally when the customer has taken
undisputed delivery of the goods.

The Council generates revenue from a number of services including management of gravel pits, contracts with the Queensland State Government for road
and earthworks, and operation of Council owned facilities.

Revenue from contracts and recoverable works generally comprises a recoupment of material costs together with an hourly charge for the use of equipment
and employees. Contract revenue and associated costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the reporting date.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable in relation to that activity. Where consideration is received for the service in

advance it is included in other liabilities and is recognised as revenue in the period when the service is performed.
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3 Revenue Analysis continued

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Other recurrent income
Agquatic Centre income 12 151 12 151
Entertainment Centre income 1,866 1,590 1,866 1,590
Fines and penalties 110 114 110 114
Commissions 187 180 187 180
Controlled entity dividend - - 716 -
Income tax equivalent - state government entity 6,337 - 6,337 -
Income tax equivalent - controlled entity - - 639 932
Rental income 645 701 645 701
Sales revenue 5,270 4,393 5,270 4,393
Other 5,689 5,942 3,907 3,870
20,116 13,071 19,689 11,931

4 Grants, Subsidies, Confributions and Donations

Grants and Subsidies

Grants, subsidies and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the year which Council obtains control over them. An
equivalent amount is placed in reserve until the funds are expended.

Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is recognised as the various performance obligations under the funding agreement are
fulfilled. Council does not have any reciprocal grants.

Non-Cash Contributions

Non-cash contributions with a value in excess of the recognition thresholds, are recognised as revenue and as non-current assets. Non-cash contributions

below the thresholds are recorded as revenue and expenses.

Physical assets contributed to Council by developers in the form of road works, stormwater, water and wastewater infrastructure and park equipment are
recognised as revenue when the development becomes "on maintenance" (i.e. the Council obtains control of the assets and becomes liable for any ongoing
maintenance) and there is sufficient data in the form of drawings and plans to determine the approximate specifications and values of such assets. All non-
cash contributions are recognised at the fair value of the contribution received on the date of acquisition.

Cash Contributions

Council receives cash contributions from property developers to construct assets such as roads and footpaths and to connect new property developments to
water and sewerage networks in the local government area. Where agreements between Council and the developers relating to these contributions are
determined to fall within the scope of AASB Interpretation 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers these contributions are recognised as revenue when the
related service obligations are fulfilled.

Developers also pay infrastructure charges for trunk infrastructure, such as pumping stations, treatment works, mains, sewers and water pollution control
works. These infrastructure charges are not within the scope of AASB Interpretation 18 because there is no performance obligation associated with them.
Consequently, the infrastructure charges are recognised as income when received.



(a) Recurrent

General purpose grants

State Government subsidies and grants
Commonwealth subsidies and grants
Donations

Contributions

Non-government subsidies and grants

(b) Capital

(i) Monetary revenue received:

State government grants and subsidies
Commonwealth subsidies and grants
Developer contributions

Other contributions

(ii) Non-monetary revenue received:

Donated assets contributed by developers at fair

value

Other donated assets

Conditions over contributions

Note

14
14

4 Grants, Subsidies, Contributions and Donations continued

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

11,196 7,533 11,196 7,533
1,169 1,179 1,169 1,179
684 1,804 684 1,804
- 6 - 6
1 117 1 117
31 16 31 16
13,081 10,655 13,081 10,655
5,995 2,002 5,995 2,002
9,821 19,334 9,821 19,334
883 1,539 883 1,539
491 6,618 491 6,618
17,190 29,493 17,190 29,493
4,233 1,994 4,233 1,994

130 - 130 -
21,553 31,487 21,553 31,487

Contributions recognised as income during the current and prior reporting periods and which were obtained on the condition that they be expended in a

manner specified by the contributor but had not been expended at the reporting date:

Developer contributions for infrastructure

1,800

1,800

1,800

1,800
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5 Employee Benefits

Salaries and Wages

A liability for salaries and wages is recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at current pay rates in respect of employees'

services up to that date. This liability represents an accrued expense and is reported in Note 15 as a payable.

Annual Leave

A liability for annual leave is recognised. Amounts expected to be settled within 12 months are calculated on current wage and salary levels and include
related employee on-costs. Amounts not expected to be settled within 12 months are calculated on projected future wage and salary levels and related

employee on-costs, and are discounted to present values. This liability represents an accrued expense and is reported in Note 15 as a payable.

As Council does not have an unconditional right to defer this liability beyond 12 months annual leave is classified as a current liability.

Sick Leave

Council has an obligation to pay 16% on sick leave balances accrued since the adoption of the Gladstone Regional Council Enterprise Bargaining
Agreement on the 28th March 2013. Some former Calliope Shire Council employees are entitled to a 25% payout on sick leave accrued from 10 May
2006 to 8 September 2008. These liabilities represent an accrued expense and is reported in Note 15 as a payable. Apart from the payout options,
Council is not required to payout the sick leave balances as these are not payable upon termination.

Superannuation

The superannuation expense for the reporting period is the amount of the contribution the Council makes to the superannuation plan which provides
benefits to its employees. Details of those arrangements are set out in Note 24.

Long Service Leave

A liability for long service leave is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. The value of the liability is calculated using current pay rates and projected future increases in those rates and
includes related employee on-costs. The estimates are adjusted for the probability of the employee remaining in Council's employment or other
associated employment which would result in the Council being required to meet the liability. Adjustments are then made to allow for the proportion of
the benefit earned to date, and the result is discounted to present value. The interest rates attaching to Commonwealth Government guaranteed
securities at the reporting date are used to discount the estimated future cash outflows to their present value. This liability is reported in Note 19 as a
provision.

Where employees have met the prerequisite length of service and council does not have an unconditional right to defer this liability beyond 12 months
long service leave is classified as a current liability. Otherwise it is classified as non-current.

Service Entitlement

Certain former Gladstone City Council employees are entitled to a service entitlement payment upon departure from employment within Council. This
liability is reported in Note 15 as a payable.



5 Employee Benefits continued

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Employee Benefits
Total staff wages and salaries 46,292 46,746 43,056 43,714
Councillors' remuneration 917 909 917 909
Employee leave entitlements 7,373 6,731 7,406 6,610
Superannuation 5,916 6,164 5,630 5,840
60,498 60,550 57,009 57,073
Other employee related expenses 666 915 506 574
61,164 61,465 57,515 57,647

Less: Capitalised employee expenses (4,832) (6,451) (4,832) (6,451)
Total employee benefits 56,332 55,014 52,683 51,196
Councillor remuneration represents salary and other allowances paid in respect of carrying out their duties.
Total Council employees and elected members at the reporting date:

30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
Elected members 9 9 9 9
Office of the CEO 40 38 40 38
Finance 37 36 37 36
Corporate and Community Services 133 134 133 134
Engineering Services 251 248 251 248
Planning and Environment 149 149 149 149
Controlled Entity 36 36 - -
Controlled Entity Board members 6 7 - -
Total full time equivalent employees 661 657 619 614
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6 Materials and Services

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Advertising and marketing 400 366 399 363
Artist fees and expenses 212 264 212 264
Audit by the Auditor-General of Queensland 177 192 153 151
Chemicals 205 190 205 190
Consultants 1,607 3,420 1,389 2,666
Contractors 20,853 20,264 20,753 20,264
Donations and sponsorships 2,583 1,715 2,578 1,708
Electricity and gas 4,235 4,213 3,884 3,859
Equipment and software expenses 7,440 5,572 7,382 5,368
Fuel 1,922 2,052 1,901 2,021
General administration 1,548 2,115 1,548 2,022
Insurance 2,151 2,473 1,983 2,315
Investment property expense (property generating income) 13 34 13 34
Investment property expenses (property not generating income) 2 3 2 3
Legal expenses 402 425 348 330
Motor vehicle expenses 1,879 1,296 1,854 1,272
Other material and services 3,724 3,493 3,217 3,578
Property expenses 2,570 2,205 2,404 2,205
Rentals - operating leases 53 21 53 21
Repairs and maintenance 1,050 3,798 1,050 2,176
Staff and Councillor associated expenses 1,419 1,490 1,411 1,460
Subscriptions and memberships 260 298 251 283
Sundry expenses 90 311 64 202
Telephone expenses 609 605 572 618
Tipping fees 3,206 2,955 3,206 2,956
Water purchases 15,674 15,702 15,667 15,702
Waste disposal expenses 113 29 52 29

74,397 75,501 72,551 72,060

7 Finance Costs

Finance costs charged by the Queensland Treasury
Corporation 8,236 9,357 6,154 7,278
Fair value adjustment 18 267 283 267 283
Market value realisation - 1,907 - 1,907
Other 421 (50) 290 (175)

8,924 11,497 6,711 9,293




8 Capital Expenses

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Loss on disposal of non-current assets
Proc.eeds from sale of property, plant and (641) (845) (589) (822)
equipment
Less Book value of property, plant and equipment
disposed:
Plant and equipment 677 1,111 634 1,089
Buildings 300 74 300 74
Parks furniture and other structures 224 16 225 16
Roads, drainge and transport infrastructure 16,623 2,031 16,623 2,031
Sewerage 16 1,615 16 1,615
Water 225 1,083 225 1,083

17,424 5,085 17,434 5,086
Loss on write-off of non-current assets 14 1,410 2,278 1,410 2,278
Revaluation down of investment property 13 798 638 798 638
Total capital expenses 19,632 8,001 19,642 8,002

The loss on disposal of non-current assets is significantly higher than the previous year due to the disposal of road and stormwater flood damaged

assets.

9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, all cash and cheques receipted but not banked at the year end, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant

risk of changes in value.

Cash, deposits at call, and term deposits are held at a variety of Australian Banks and Credit Unions and the Queensland Treasury Corporation with
credit ratings ranging from AAA to BBB- or unrated. All Gladstone Airport Corporation investments are held in the Queensland Treasury Corporation

cash management account bearing variable interest rates.

The Council may be exposed to credit risk through its investments in the Queensland Treasury Corporation Cash Fund. The Queensland Treasury

Corporation Cash Fund is an asset management portfolio that invests with a wide range of high credit rated counterparties.

Deposits with the Queensland Treasury Corporation Cash Fund are capital guaranteed.
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@ Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand

Deposits at call

Term deposits

Balance per Statements of Cash Flows

Externally imposed expenditure restrictions at the
reporting date relate to the following cash assets:

Unspent government grants and subsidies

Total unspent restricted cash for capital projects

10 Trade and Other Receivables

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
856 1,888 710 950
34,098 49,663 32,276 39,409
85,421 54,650 75,493 54,650
120,375 106,201 108,479 95,009
5,612 1,211 5,612 1,211
5,612 1,211 5,612 1,211

Trade receivables are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed purchase price/contract price. Settlement of

these amounts is required within 30 days from invoice date.

The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically and if there is objective evidence that Council will not be able to collect all amounts due, the

carrying amount is reduced for impairment. The loss is recognised in other finance costs. The amount of the impairment is the difference between the

asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate.

Interest is charged on outstanding rates at a rate of 11% per annum. No interest is charged on other debtors. There is no concentration of credit risk for

rates and utility charges, fees and other debtors receivable.

All known bad debts were written-off at 30 June. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off in the same period are recognised as finance

costs in the Statements of Comprehensive Income. If an amount is recovered in a subsequent period it is recognised as revenue.

Because Council is empowered under the provisions of the Local Government Act 2009 to sell an owner's property to recover outstanding rate debts,

Council does not impair any rate receivables.

Loans and advances are recognised in the same way as other receivables. Terms are usually a maximum of five years with interest charged at

commercial rates. Security is not normally obtained.

Current

Rateable revenue and utility charges
Water charges not yet levied

Other debtors

Less: Impairment

GST recoverable

Interest receivable

Accrued revenue

Prepayments

Gladstone Airport Corporation

100

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
7,930 6,180 7,930 6,180
7,388 7,891 7,388 7,891
6,602 5,161 5,037 2,862
(242) (347) (242) (220)
1,557 1,458 1,621 1,535
507 457 507 457
546 5,237 546 5,164
1,775 1,509 1,654 1,409
- - 1,517 1,467
26,063 27,546 25,958 26,745




10 Trade and Other Receivables continued

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Non-current
Income tax equivalent - Gladstone Airport Corporation
- - - 851
Competitive neutrality margin - Gladstone Airport
Corporation - - - 829
Shareholder loan - Gladstone Airport Corporation
- - 33,716 33,716
- - 33,716 35,396

On the 1 July 2012 Gladstone Airport Corporation came into existence under the Local Government (Beneficial Enterprises and Business Activities
(Repealed)) Regulation 2010. The Statement of Corporate Intent outlines the acknowledgement of debt which Council currently holds as a QTC liability

and controlled entity receivable.

Shareholder loan

The loan is secured by a fixed and floating charge over the Gladstone Airport Corporation's assets and undertakings.

For the purposes of completing the maturity analysis, the principal component of these loans has been included in the more than five year time band.

A competitive neutrality margin of 1.5% on the outstanding loan balance is also payable by the Corporation to GRC, in accordance with the requirements
of the Local Government (Beneficial Enterprises & Business Activities (Repealed)) Regulation 2010.

Loans to Gladstone Airport Corporation are at a fixed rate with an interest rate of 6.06%, together with an administration fee of 0.1% per annum. The
facility is an amortising loan with principal repayments commencing from 30 June 2030.

11 Land Purchased for Development and Sale

Land held for development and sale is classified as inventory. This is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Land approved by Council for resale is classified and recognised as a current asset where steps have been taken to ready the property for market and it is
expected that the property will be sold within a 12 month period. Land for resale is classified as a non-current asset where it is expected that the asset will

not be sold within a 12 month period. Costs incurred in preparing land for sale are capitalised at cost and are included in the value of land held for resale.

Profit arising upon resale of land is recognised in the Statements of Comprehensive Income on the signing of a valid unconditional contract of sale.

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Opening balance as at 1 July 191 191 191 191
Additions at Cost 109 - 109 -
Closing balance as at 30 June 300 191 300 191
Classified as :
Current 300 191 300 191
Non-current - - - -

300 191 300 191

This land is freehold land Council has decided to sell to address the market demand for residential allotments. The land is expected to be developed and

sold within the next twelve months. The land is valued at the lower of cost and selling price less cost to sell.
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2 Investment in Controlled Entity - Gladstone Airport Corporation

These consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and result of the Gladstone Airport Corporation in accordance with AASB 10 and

the accounting policy described in Note 1 (1.02).

Gladstone Airport Corporation is a Local Government owned Corporation wholly owned by Gladstone Regional Council.

Gladstone Airport Corporation became a corporatized entity on 1 July 2012 in the State of Queensland under Local Government (Beneficial Enterprises
and Business Activities(Repealed)) Regulation 2010 to administer the for-profit airport activities.

Gladstone Airport Corporation carries out its business at its registered address at Aerodrome Road, Gladstone.

Councils' investment in the controlled entity, Gladstone Airport Corporation, is accounted for at cost in Councils' separate financial statements.
This investment is eliminated in the financial Statements of the economic entity upon consolidation.
Gladstone Regional Council holds 100% of the investment in the controlled entity.

The investment is measured at cost as fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Opening balance as at 1 July - - 71,854 71,854
Closing balance as at 30 June - - 71,854 71,854

3 Investment Property

Investment property is property held for the primary purpose of earning rental and/or capital appreciation. This includes property held by the Council
without any specific purpose (such as land no longer required for its original purpose). At the balance date there was no property being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

Investment property is measured using the fair value model. This means it is initially recognised at cost including transaction costs. Where investment
property is acquired at no or nominal cost it is recognised at fair value. All investment property is subsequently revalued annually at the balance date.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in the Statements of Comprehensive Income in the period in

which they arise. Investment property is not depreciated and is not tested for impairment.

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Land - at independent valuation 1,679 1,721 1,679 1,721
Buildings - at independent valuation 3,033 3,789 3,033 3,789

4,712 5,510 4,712 5,510
Investment property reconciliation
Fair value at beginning of financial year 5,510 4,863 5,510 4,863
Transfer to buildings 14 - (124) - (124)
Transfer from buildings 14 - 1,039 - 1,039
Transfer from land 14 - 370 - 370
Revaluation of investment property 8 (798) (638) (798) (638)
Fair value at end of financial year 4,712 5,510 4,712 5,510

Income from investment property is shown in Note 3d. Expenses in respect of investment property are shown in Note 6.

Investment property comprises of commercial properties which are rented out. These properties were valued at fair value by APV Valuers and Asset
Management, an independent professionally qualified valuation firm, as at 30 June 2017. Fair value was determined by reference to market based

evidence including observable historical sales data in the relevant market for properties of similar nature and specification.

At reporting date there was no property being constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

No contingent rentals were recognised during the current or prior reporting periods.



14 Property Plant and Equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss. Buildings, parks and office structures with a total value of less than $10,000, plant and equipment with a total value of less than $5,000
and land with a total value of less than $1 are treated as an expense in the year of acquisition. All other items of property, plant and equipment are
capitalised.

The classes of property, plant and equipment recognised by the Council are:

¢ Land and improvements e Park furniture and other structures

o Buildings * Roads, drainage and transport infrastructure
* Major plant and equipment e Water infrastructure

® Plant and equipment o Sewerage infrastructure

e Cultural assets e Work in progress

Acquisition of Assets

Acquisition of assets are initially recorded at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus costs incidental to the
acquisition, including freight in, architect's fees, engineering design fees and all other establishment costs.

Non-monetary assets, including property, plant and equipment, received in the form of contributions are recognised as assets and revenues at fair value
by Council where that value exceeds the recognition thresholds for the respective asset class. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell the
asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Capital and Operating Expenditure

Wage and materials expenditure incurred for the acquisition or construction of assets are treated as capital expenditure. Routine operating maintenance,
repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational capacity of the non-current assets are expensed as incurred, while expenditure that relates
to the replacement of a major component of an asset to maintain its service potential is capitalised.

Expenditure incurred in accordance with Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements on road assets is analysed to determine whether the
expenditure is capital in nature. The analysis of the expenditure requires Council engineers to review the nature and extent of expenditure on a given
asset. For example, expenditure that patches a road is generally maintenance in nature, whereas a kerb to kerb rebuild is treated as capital. Material
expenditure that extends the useful life or renews the service potential of the asset is capitalised.

Valuation

Land and improvements, buildings, major plant and equipment and all infrastructure assets are measured on the revaluation basis, at fair value, in
accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment and AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement . All other non-current assets, principally plant and
equipment are measured at cost.

Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued where required so that the carrying amount of each class of asset does not materially
differ from its fair value at the reporting date. This is achieved by comprehensively revaluing these assets at least once every five years with interim
valuations, using a suitable index, being otherwise performed on an annual basis where there has been a material variation in the index.

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the asset revaluation surplus, except to the extent
it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an
expense, to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset class.

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of the asset and any change in the estimate
of remaining useful life.

Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they relate.
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14 Property Plant and Equipment continued

Major Plant and Equipment

The Council has determined that plant which has an individual cost in excess of $350,000 is of high value to the Council. Plant which meets this criteria is
major plant if it is prone to a high degree of price fluctuations or in danger of becoming obsolete. The asset class primarily includes specialised
earthmoving equipment.

Capital Work in Progress

The cost of property, plant and equipment being constructed by the Council includes the cost of purchased services, materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of labour overheads.

Investment property under construction is classified as investment property. Refer to Note 13 for further information.

Depreciation

Land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful life. Depreciation on other land improvements and property, plant and equipment is calculated on a
straight-line basis so as to write-off the net cost or revalued amount of each depreciable asset, less its estimated residual value, progressively over its
estimated useful life to the Council. Management believe that the straight-line basis appropriately reflects the pattern of consumption of all Council
assets.

Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets, from the time an asset is completed and commissioned
ready for use.

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned useful lives distinct from
the asset to which they relate. Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised and the new
depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset to Council.

Major spares purchased specifically for particular assets that are above the asset recognition threshold are capitalised and depreciated on the same basis
as the asset to which they relate.

The depreciable amount of improvements to or on leasehold land is allocated progressively over the estimated useful lives of the improvements to the
Council or the unexpired period of the lease, whichever is the shorter.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes in the pattern of consumption, physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence,
or management intentions. The condition assessments performed as part of the annual valuation process for assets measured at written down current
replacement cost are used to estimate the useful lives of these assets at each reporting date.

Impairment of Non-Current Assets

Each non-current physical and intangible asset and group of assets are assessed for indicators of impairment annually. If an indicator of possible
impairment exists, the Council determines the asset's recoverable amount. Any amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable
amount is recorded as an impairment loss. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statements of Comprehensive Income, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount. When the
asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation surplus of the relevant class to the extent available.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as an asset revaluation surplus increase.

Land Under Roads

The Gladstone Regional Council does not control any land under roads. All land under the road network within the Council area has been dedicated and
opened for public use under the Land Act 1994 or the Land Title Act 1994 and is not controlled by Council but is controlled by the State pursuant to the
relevant legislation. Therefore this land is not recognised in these financial Statements.
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14 Property Plant and Equipment continued

Recognised fair value measurements

Council measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis:

Investment Property
¢ Investment land

¢ Investment buildings

Property, Plant and Equipment
Land and improvements

Buildings

Major plant and equipment

Cultural assets

Road, drainage and transport infrastructure

Water infrastructure

Sewerage infrastructure

Parks, furniture, and other structures

Council does not measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis.

Council has assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value, but for which fair values are disclosed in other notes.

Council borrowings are measured at amortised cost with interest recognised in profit or loss when incurred. The fair value of borrowings disclosed in Note 17 is provided by the
Queensland Treasury Corporation and represents the contractual undiscounted cash flows at balance date (level 2).

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature (level 2).

Council also has assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as a result of being reclassified as assets held for sale. A description of the valuation techniques and the inputs
used to determine the fair value of this land is included below under the heading "Land (level 2)".

In accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis:
¢ fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1)
¢ fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability (level 2)
¢ fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability (level 3)

The following table categorises fair value measurements as either level 2 or level 3 in accordance with AASB 13. Council does not have any assets or liabilities measured at fair value
which meet the criteria for categorisation as level 1.

The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data, where it is available, and minimise the use of entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an asset are observable, the asset is included in level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market
data, the asset is included in level 3. This is the case for Council infrastructure assets, which are of a specialist nature for which there is no active market for similar or identical assets.
These assets are valued using a combination of observable and unobservable inputs.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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14 Property Plant and Equipment continued

Recognised fair value measurements (cont'd)

The table presents the Council's assets and liabilities measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2017.

Consolidated Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 30 June 2017 (Significant other observable inputs) (Significant unobservable inputs)
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000
Recurring fair value measurements
Note

Investment property
Investment land 13 1,679 1,721 - - 1,679 1,721
Investment buildings 13 3,033 3,789 - - 3,033 3,789
Property, plant and equipment
Land and improvements 14 128,956 129,399 - - 128,956 129,399
Buildings 14 - - 146,353 142,882 146,353 142,882
Major plant and equipment 14 2,396 2,037 - - 2,396 2,037
Cultural assets 14 1,081 1,010 - - 1,081 1,010
Road, drainage and transport infrastructure 1 - - 1,376,244 1,278,757 1,376,244 1,278,757
Water infrastructure 14 - - 211,165 204,519 211,165 204,519
Sewerage infrastructure 14 - - 365,697 358,720 365,697 358,720
Parks, furniture, and other structures 14 - - 30,973 27,318 30,973 27,318

137,145 137,956 2,130,432 2,012,196 2,267,577 2,150,152
Council Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 30 June 2017 (Significant other observable inputs) (Significant unobservable inputs)

30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
Recurring fair value measurements $'000 $'000 $'000
Note

Investment property
Investment land 13 1,679 1,721 - - 1,679 1,721
Investment buildings 13 3,033 3,789 - - 3,033 3,789
Property, plant and equipment
Land and improvements 14 119,055 119,499 - - 119,055 119,499
Buildings 14 - - 126,998 122,872 126,998 122,872
Major plant and equipment 14 2,395 2,036 - - 2,395 2,036
Cultural assets 14 1,081 1,010 - - 1,081 1,010
Road, drainage and transport infrastructure " - - 1,321,135 1,222,399 1,321,135 1,222,399
Water infrastructure 14 - - 211,166 204,519 211,166 204,519
Sewerage infrastructure 14 - - 365,697 358,720 365,697 358,720
Parks, furniture, and other structures 14 - - 26,878 23,068 26,878 23,068

127,243 128,055 2,051,874 1,931,578 2,179,117 2,059,633




14 Property Plant and Equipment continued

Recognised fair value measurements (cont'd)

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year, nor between levels 2 and 3.

Council's policy is to recognise transfers in and out of the fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.
(ii) Valuation techniques used to derive fair values for level 2 and level 3 valuations

Specific valuation techniques used to value Council assets comprise:

Land and improvements (level 2)

Land fair values were determined by independent valuer, APV Valuers and Asset Management with a desktop valuation effective 30 June 2017. Level 2 valuation inputs were used to
value land held in freehold title as well as land used for special purposes which is restricted in use under current zoning rules. Sales prices of comparable land sites in close proximity are
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant inputs into this valuation approach are price per square metre.

Land classified as held for sale during the reporting period was measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell at the time of reclassification. The fair value
of the land was determined using the sales comparison approach described in the preceding paragraph.

Buildings, parks and other structures (level 2 and 3

The fair value of buildings is determined by independent valuer, APV Valuers and Asset Management with a desktop valuation effective 30 June 2017. Where there is a market for
Council building assets, fair value has been derived from the sales prices of comparable properties after adjusting for differences in key attributes such as property size. The most
significant inputs into this valuation approach were price per square metre.

Specialised buildings were valued using the cost approach using professionally qualified registered valuers. The approach estimated the replacement cost for each building by
componentising the buildings into significant parts with different useful lives and taking into account a range of factors. While the unit rates based on square metres could be
supported from market evidence (level 2) other inputs (such as estimates of residual value, useful life, pattern of consumption and asset condition) required extensive professional
judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination of fair value. As such these assets were classified as having been valued using level 3 valuation inputs.

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation the asset has been disaggregated into significant components which exhibit useful lives. Allowance has been made for the typical
asset life cycle and renewal treatments of each component, residual value at the time the asset is considered to be no longer available for use and the condition of the asset. Condition
was assessed taking into account both physical characteristics as well as holistic factors such as functionality, capability, utilisation and obsolescence.

Major plant and equipment (Level 2

The fair value of major plant is measured at current market value as at 30 June 2017. This was determined by management on a condition audit and market-based evidence using
comparable replacement costs from the most recent price catalogues for specialised earth moving equipment. The key assumptions used in assessing the conditions included site
condition, type of usage, major mechanical component condition, and machine hours. The fair value takes into account transport costs to transport the plant to market, but does not
include transaction costs.

Infrastructure assets (level 3)

The fair Value of all Council infrastructure was determined by Council professional officers applying a desktop valuation. Water and sewerage infrastructure assets were
comprehensively valued by APV Valuers and Asset Management effective 30 June 2016. Roads, drainage, and transport infrastructure were fair valued comprehensively by Assetic Pty
Ltd effective 30 June 2016. The 2017 desktop revaluation took into account changes of condition as a result of capital expenditures and expected deterioration. Detailed reviews of unit
rates associated with roads and pathway type assets were undertaken, for all other infrastructure assets indexation in line with the LGAQ Council Cost Index 2017.
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14 Property Plant and Equipment continued

Valuation techniques used to derive fair values for level 2 and level 3 valuations (cont'd)

Infrastructure assets (level 3) (cont'd)

All assets were valued using written down current replacement cost. This valuation comprises the asset’s current replacement cost (CRC) less accumulated depreciation calculated on
the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset. Council first determined the gross cost of replacing the full service potential of
the asset and then adjusted this amount to take account of the expired service potential of the asset.

CRC was measured by reference to the lowest cost at which the gross future economic benefits of the asset could currently be obtained in the normal course of business. Where
existing assets were over designed, had excess capacity, or were redundant an adjustment was made so that the resulting valuation reflected the cost of replacing the existing
economic benefits based on an efficient set of modern equivalent assets to achieve the required level of service output within the council's planning horizon.

The unit rates (labour and materials) and quantities applied to determine the CRC of an asset or asset component were based on a mixture of "Greenfield" and "Brownfield"
assumptions. The CRC was determined using methods relevant to the asset class as described under individual asset categories below.

Road, drainage and transport infrastructure (RDTI) - calculation of current replacement cost

Roads

Current replacement cost

As the majority of Council's works occurring on existing roads and renewals resulting in similar carriageway widths, Council has utilised a methodology based on the replacement of
road pavement and surfaces to current pavement design standards with the same carriageway details. This financial year Council's stereotyping of road type assets has considered high
order (Collector and above) and low order (Access Streets and Places) roads separately. Council considered that replacement pavements are constructed to a depth standard consistent
with Council's Roads and Transport Standards 2005.

The reconstruction approach considers additional resources associated with constructing within constrained 'Brownfields' sites when compared to a 'Greenfield site'. These inputs
include the need to dispose existing infrastructure, work in tight conditions, ensure access requirements are met and meet additional safety and traffic control requirements. The
reconstruction approach produces a valuation that better represents the current replacement cost of the Council's Roads assets.

Accumulated depreciation

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation, roads were disaggregated into significant components which exhibited different useful lives.

As part of the comprehensive revaluation undertaken for the 2015/16 financial year a condition assessment was undertaken on sealed road assets and a sample of unsealed road
assets including a number of metrics. These metrics were utilised, along with other information, to determine the consumption of the component's service potential. For the desktop
revaluation undertaken with an effective date 30 June 2017 the amount of service potential consumed was determined based on the useful lives of components and adjusted to take
account for capital expenditure in the financial year.

Bridges

Current replacement cost

The fair value of bridge assets was determined by Council's professional officers applying a desktop valuation effective 30 June 2017. CRC was calculated as part of the comprehensive
valuation undertaken for the 2015/16 financial year by reference to asset linear and area specifications, estimated labour and material inputs, service costs and overhead allocations.
This included consideration of material type used for construction, the deck area and size. The values for the 2016/17 valuation were based on the comprehensive valuation indexed in
accordance with the LGAQ Council Cost Index 2017.

Accumulated depreciation

The remaining useful lives of the bridge asset components were reviewed in 2015/16. These metrics were utilised, along with other information, to determine the accumulated
consumption of the component's service potential. Through this assessment the remaining useful lives were determined and aligned with actual condition. For the desktop revaluation
undertaken with an effective date 30 June 2017 the amount of service potential consumed was determined based on the useful lives of components and adjusted to take account for
capital expenditure in the financial year.



14 Property Plant and Equipment continued

Road, drainage and transport infrastructure - calculation of current replacement cost (cont'd)

Drainage infrastructure
Current replacement cost

The fair value of Drainage infrastructure was determined by Council's professional officers applying a desktop valuation effective 30 June 2017.

Consistent with roads, Council assumes that environmental factors such as soil type, climate and topography are consistent across each segment and that a segment is designed and
constructed to the same standard and uses a consistent amount of labour and materials. Construction estimates were determined on a similar basis to sewerage.The values for the
2016/17 valuation were based on the comprehensive valuation undertaken for the 2015/16 financial year indexed in accordance with the LGAQ Council Cost Index 2017.

Accumulated depreciation
In determining the level of accumulated depreciation, drainage assets were disaggregated into significant components which exhibited different useful lives.

As part of the comprehensive revaluation undertaken for the 2015/16 financial year estimates of expired service potential and remaining useful lives were determined on a sample of
assets which had condition assessments. The service potential and remaining useful life were assumed to be in proportion with the sampled assets for all other assets. For the desktop
revaluation undertaken with an effective date 30 June 2017 the amount of service potential consumed was determined based on the useful lives of components and adjusted to take
account for capital expenditure in the financial year.

Water and Sewerage Infrastructure — calculation of written down current replacement cost

Water and Sewerage

Current replacement cost

The approach estimated the replacement cost of each asset by componentising the assets into significant parts with different useful lives and taking into account a range of factors.
While the unit rates based on square meters or similar capacity could be supported from market evidence (level 2) other inputs (such as estimates of residual value, useful life, pattern
of consumption and asset condition) required extensive professional judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination of fair value. As such these assets were classified
as having been valued using level 3 valuation inputs. The values for the 2016/17 valuation were based on the comprehensive valuation undertaken for the 2015/16 financial year
indexed in accordance with the LGAQ Council Cost Index 2017.

Accumulated depreciation

As part of the comprehensive revaluation undertaken in the 2015/16 financial year, in determining accumulated depreciation, assets were either subject to a site inspection or an
assessment to determine remaining useful life. Where site inspections were conducted, the assets were allocated a consumption score of between 0 and 5, which was used as an input
in estimating the remaining service potential. The higher the condition rating, the lower the fair value. The estimate of the remaining service potential included asset condition, legal
and commercial obsolescence and the determination of key depreciation related assumptions such as residual value, useful life and pattern of consumption of the future economic
benefit. Where site inspections were not conducted (i.e. for passive assets and active assets for which no site inspections were undertaken), the consumption score was calculated on
information contained within Council's asset management system and sampled assets.

For the desktop revaluation undertaken with an effective date 30 June 2017 the amount of service potential consumed during the financial year was determined based on the useful
lives of components and adjusted to take account for capital expenditure in the financial year.
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14 Property Plant and Equipment continued

Changes in Fair Value Measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

The changes in level 3 assets with recurring fair value measurements are detailed in Note 13 (Investment Property) and Note 14 (property, plant and equipment). However, since the bt

Consolidated Council
$'000 $'000
Changes in buildings (Level 3)
Opening gross value as at 1 July 2016 164,680 138,182
Additions 1,504 1,470
Disposals (384) (384)
Write-offs (685) (685)
Revaluation adjustment to asset revaluation
surplus 3,787 3,787
168,902 142,370
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Opening balance as at 1 July 2016 21,799 15,310
Depreciation provided for in period 2,250 1,561
Disposals (84) (84)
Write-offs (5) (5)
Revaluation adjustment to asset revaluation surplus (1,411) (1,411)
Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2017 22,549 15,371
Book value as at 30 June 2017 146,353 126,998

(iv) Valuation processes

Council's valuation policies and procedures are reviewed annually taking into consideration an analysis of movements in fair value and other relevant information. Council's current
policy for the valuation of property, plant and equipment and investment property (recurring fair value measurements) is set out in Notes 14 and 13 respectively. Non-recurring fair
value measurements are made at the point of reclassification by a registered valuer.

(v) Found assets first recognised

As part of ongoing asset data improvements, additional assets not previously recognised were identified and brought to account.
This resulted in a net adjustment of $5,475,604 (2016 - $5,377,143) which is considered immaterial against Council capital and property, plant and equipment balances, hence no

adjustment has been made against comparative figures or disclosed as a prior period error as required under AASB108Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
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15 Trade and Other Payables

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed purchase/contract price net of applicable
discounts other than contingent discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 30 day terms.

Trade and other payables
Current - Trade

Creditors and accruals

Current - Employee

Accrued RDO and leave in lieu
Annual leave

Service entitlement

Sick leave

Long service leave

Paid parental leave

Total current trade and other payables

16 Borrowings

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
14,023 11,183 13,585 10,658
14,023 11,183 13,585 10,658
389 436 378 426
4,748 4,761 4,528 4,516
475 517 475 517
341 357 317 335
1,399 1,366 1,160 1,142
5 4 5 4
7,357 7,441 6,863 6,940
21,380 18,624 20,448 17,598

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these liabilities are measured

at amortised cost.

In accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012 Council adopts an annual debt policy that sets out council's planned borrowings for the next nine

years. Council's current policy is to only borrow for capital projects and for a term no longer than the expected life of the asset. Council also aims to comply

with the Queensland Treasury Corporation's borrowing guidelines and ensure that sustainability indicators remain within acceptable levels at all times.

Borrowings
Current

Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation
Loans - Interest Free - DIP
Loans - Other

Non-current

Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation
Loans - Interest Free - DIP

Total borrowings

Note

17
18

17
18

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

8,586 7,776 8,586 7,776
484 467 484 467

1 10 - -
9,071 8,253 9,070 8,243
123,350 131,979 123,350 131,979
5,027 5,511 5,027 5,511
128,377 137,490 128,377 137,490
137,448 145,743 137,447 145,733

No assets have been pledged as security by the Council for any liabilities, however all loans are guaranteed by the Queensland Government.
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16 Borrowings continued

All borrowings are in SAUD denominated amounts and carried at amortised cost, interest being expensed as it accrues. No interest has been capitalised
during the current or comparative reporting period. Expected final repayment dates vary from 15 September 2020 to 15 December, 2032.
There have been no defaults or breaches of the loan agreement during the period.

Principal and interest repayments are made quarterly and in arrears.

17 Borrowings - inferest bearing
Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Queensland Treasury Corporation

Opening balance as at 1 July 139,755 161,967 139,755 161,967
Principal repayments (7,819) (22,212) (7,819) (22,212)
Closing balance as at 30 June 131,936 139,755 131,936 139,755

The loan market value at the reporting date was $154,845,359.68. This represents the value of the debt if the Council repaid it at that date.
As it is the intention of the Council to hold the debt for its term, no provision is required to be made in these accounts. Principal repayments represent the
net payments before interest and administration costs.

18 Borrowings - inferest free

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Department of Infrastructure, Local Government and Planning

Opening balance as at 1 July 5,978 6,429 5,978 6,429
Fair value adjustment 267 283 267 283
Principal repayments (734) (734) (734) (734)
Closing balance as at 30 June 5,511 5,978 5,511 5,978

These loans are guaranteed by the Queensland State Government.
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19 Provisions

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Non-Current
Landfill remediation 2,885 3,828 2,885 3,828
Long service leave 7,062 6,979 7,056 6,946

9,947 10,807 9,941 10,774
Details of movements in provisions:
Long Service Leave (current and non-current)
Opening balance as at 1 July 8,346 8,441 8,088 8,293
Long service entitlement arising / (decreasing) 1,425 1,141 1,388 1,016
Long service entitlement extinguished (2) (12) (1) (5)
Long service entitlement paid (1,308) (1,224) (1,260) (1,216)
Closing balance as at 30 June 8,461 8,346 8,215 8,088

Landfill remediation

A provision is made for the cost of restoration in respect of refuse dumps where it is probable the Council will be liable, or required, to incur such a cost on
the cessation of use of these facilities. The provision is measured at the expected cost of the work required, discounted to current day values using the
interest rates attaching to Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities with a maturity date corresponding to the anticipated date of the restoration.
The provision represents the present value of the anticipated future costs associated with the closure of the dump sites, decontamination and monitoring of
historical residues and leaching on these sites. The calculation of this provision requires assumptions such as application of environmental legislation, site
closure dates, available technologies and engineering cost estimates. These uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing from amounts

currently provided. Because of the long-term nature of the liability, the most significant uncertainty in estimating the provision is the costs that will be

incurred.

The provision recognised for dump sites is reviewed at least annually and updated based on the facts and circumstances available at the time.

As refuse dumps are on state reserves, the provision for restoration is treated as an expense in the year the provision is first recognised. Changes in the
provision are treated as an expense or income.

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Opening balance as at 1 July 3,828 3,339 3,828 3,339
Increase in provision - finance cost 54 38 54 38
Increase in provision due to change in discount rate - 451 - 451
Decrease in provision due to change in projected (997) ) (997) )
costs

2,885 3,828 2,885 3,828

This is the present value of the estimated cost of restoring the refuse disposal site to a useable state at the end of its useful life.
The projected cost is $3,000,000 and this cost is expected to be incurred in 2024.
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20 Asset Revaluation Surplus

The asset revaluation surplus comprises adjustments relating to changes in value of property, plant and equipment that do not result from the use of those

assets. Net incremental changes in the carrying value of classes of non-current assets since their initial recognition are accumulated in the asset revaluation

surplus.

Increases and decreases upon revaluation are offset within a class of assets.

Where a class of assets is decreased upon revaluation, that decrease is offset first against the amount remaining in the asset revaluation surplus in respect of

that class. Any excess is treated as an expense.

When an asset is disposed of, the amount reported in surplus in respect of that asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus and not transferred to

retained surplus.

Movements in the asset revaluation surplus were as
follows:

Opening balance as at 1 July

Net adjustment to non-current assets at end of
period to reflect a change in fair value:

Land and improvements

Buildings

Major plant and equipment

Parks furniture and other structures

Cultural

Roads, drainage and transport infrastructure
Sewerage infrastructure

Water infrastructure

Impairment:

Roads, drainage and transport infrastructure
Total movement for period

Closing balance as at 30 June

Asset revaluation surplus analysis

The closing balance of the asset revaluation surplus
is comprised of the following asset categories:

Land and improvements

Buildings

Major plant and equipment

Parks furniture and other structures

Cultural

Roads, drainage and transport infrastructure
Sewerage infrastructure

Water infrastructure

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
683,688 558,110 697,640 572,062
(852) (1,388) (852) (1,388)
5,198 (3,763) 5,198 (3,763)
158 (157) 158 (157)
1,129 (853) 1,129 (853)
82 37 82 37
95,554 37,813 95,554 37,813
6,254 55,580 6,254 55,580
3,607 39,617 3,607 39,617
- (1,308) - (1,308)
111,130 125,578 111,130 125,578
794,818 683,688 808,771 697,640
Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
47,985 48,837 67,574 68,426
44,347 39,149 42,721 37,523
307 149 307 149
9,295 8,166 5,875 4,746
235 153 235 153
513,594 418,040 512,967 417,413
111,037 104,783 111,073 104,819
68,018 64,411 68,018 64,411
794,818 683,688 808,770 697,640




21 Reserves

The following reserves are cash backed reserves and represent funds that are accumulated within the Council to meet anticipated future needs. In each case

the amount relates to a perceived future requirement which is not currently a liability.

Emergency Services Reserve

Council resolved to establish an emergency services reserve at 15 March 2008. The amounts reported in this reserve at balance date correspond to the
amount of cash (reported within cash and cash equivalents) set aside from surplus funding for emergency services activities to be used in the future for capital
purposes. Surplus funds are transferred from retained surplus to the emergency services reserve at the end of the financial year. When the capital funds are
expended on the respective projects, an equivalent amount is transferred out of the emergency services reserve to retained surplus. Council does not

reallocate amounts in this reserve to any other reserve or for any other purpose.

Future Capital Reserve

Council resolved to establish a future capital reserve at 15 March 2008. The amounts reported in this reserve at balance date correspond to the amount of
cash (reported within cash and cash equivalents) set aside from operating funds for future capital acquisitions and infrastructure development. The amount
transferred from retained surplus to the future capital reserve will be assessed at the end of the year depending on the operating surplus available and capital
funding sources utilised. When the funds are expended on the respective projects, an equivalent amount is transferred out of the future capital reserve to

retained surplus. Council does not reallocate amounts in this reserve to any other reserve for any other purpose.

Plant Asset Replacement Reserve

Council resolved to establish a plant asset replacement reserve at 15 March 2008. The amounts reported in this reserve at balance date correspond to the
amount of cash (reported within cash and cash equivalents) set aside from surplus funds generated by fleet operations to fund the replacement of Council's
plant and fleet systems. Surplus funds are transferred from retained surplus to the plant asset replacement reserve at the end of the financial year. When the
capital funds are expended on the respective projects, an equivalent amount is transferred out of the plant asset replacement-reserve to retained surplus.

Council does not reallocate amounts in this reserve to any other reserve or for any other purpose.

Regional Waste Management Reserve

Council resolved to establish a regional waste management reserve at 15 March 2008. The amounts reported in this reserve at balance date correspond to the
amount of cash (reported within cash and cash equivalents) set aside to fund waste management infrastructure and remediation of existing infrastructure and

sites.

It also provides a contingency amount to offset any major unforeseen waste management works which are required. Funds are transferred from retained
surplus to the regional waste management reserve as determined by the budget. When the funds are expended on the respective projects, an equivalent
amount is transferred out of the regional waste management reserve to retained surplus. Council does not reallocate amounts in this reserve to any other

reserve or for any other purpose.

This reserve also represents any unspent monetary funds on behalf of waste operations.

Parks Constrained Works Reserve

Council resolved to establish a parks constrained works reserve at 15 March 2008. The amounts reported in this reserve at balance date correspond to the
amount of cash (reported within cash and cash equivalents) set aside for the purpose of funding specific park infrastructure. It also provides a contingency
amount to offset any major unforeseen park works which are required. Funds are transferred from retained surplus to the parks constrained works reserve as
determined by the budget. When the funds are expended on the respective projects, an equivalent amount is transferred out of the parks constrained works

reserve to retained surplus. Council does not reallocate amounts in this reserve to any other reserve or for any other purpose.
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21 Reserves continued

Roads Constrained Works Reserve

Council resolved to establish a roads constrained works reserve at 15 March 2008. The amounts reported in this reserve at balance date correspond to the
amount of cash (reported within cash and cash equivalents) set aside for the purpose of funding specific road infrastructure. It also provides a contingency
amount to offset any major unforeseen road works which are required. Funds are transferred from retained surplus to the roads constrained works reserve as
determined by the budget. When the funds are expended on the respective projects, an equivalent amount is transferred out of the roads constrained works

reserve to retained surplus. Council does not reallocate amounts in this reserve to any other reserve or for any other purpose.

Water Constrained Works Reserve

Council resolved to establish a water constrained works reserve at 15 March 2008. The amounts reported in this reserve at balance date correspond to the
amount of cash (reported within cash and cash equivalents) set aside to provide funds for the future construction and replacement of Council's water and
supply infrastructure. It also provides a contingency amount to offset any major unforeseen water supply works which are required. Funds are transferred
from retained surplus to the water constrained works reserve as determined by the budget. When the funds are expended on the respective projects, an
equivalent amount is transferred out of the water constrained works reserve to retained surplus. Council does not reallocate amounts in this reserve to any

other reserve or for any other purpose.

Sewerage Constrained Works Reserve

Council resolved to establish a sewerage constrained works reserve at 15 March 2008. The amounts reported in this reserve at balance date correspond to the
amount of cash (reported within cash and cash equivalents) set aside to provide funds for the future construction and replacement of Council's sewerage
infrastructure. It also provides a contingency amount to offset any major unforeseen sewerage works which are required. Funds are transferred from retained
surplus to the sewerage constrained works reserve as determined by the budget. When the funds are expended on the respective projects, an equivalent
amount is transferred out of the sewerage constrained works reserve to retained surplus. Council does not reallocate amounts in this reserve to any other

reserve or for any other purpose.

Recurrent Grant Funding Reserve

Council resolved to establish a recurrent grant funding reserve at 15 March 2008. This reserve represents unexpended non-capital operational grant and
subsidy funding. When the funds are expended on the respective projects, an equivalent amount is transferred out of the recurrent grant funding reserve to

retained surplus. Council does not reallocate amounts in this reserve to any other reserve or for any other purpose.

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Summary of reserves held for funding future
capital expenditure:
Emergency services reserve 461 388 461 388
Future capital works reserve 20,741 17,324 20,741 17,324
Plant asset replacement reserve 20,989 18,518 20,989 18,518
Regional waste management reserve 8,313 8,471 8,313 8,471
Parks constrained works reserve 968 1,960 968 1,960
Roads constrained works reserve 20,351 21,139 20,351 21,139
Water constrained works reserve 10,427 13,986 10,427 13,986
Sewerage constrained works reserve 8,333 11,441 8,333 11,441

90,583 93,227 90,583 93,227




21 Reserves continued

Summary of reserves held for funding future
recurrent expenditure:

Recurrent grant funding reserve

Total reserves

Movements in capital reserves:

Emergency services reserve

Opening balance as at 1 July

Transfer from retained earnings for future
expenditure

Transfer to capital for funds expended in
the period

Closing balance as at 30 June

Future capital works reserve

Opening balance as at 1 July

Transfer from retained earnings for future
expenditure

Transfer to capital for funds expended in
the period

Closing balance as at 30 June

Plant asset replacement reserve

Opening balance as at 1 July

Transfer from retained earnings for future
expenditure

Transfer to capital for funds expended in
the period

Closing balance as at 30 June

Regional waste management reserve
Opening balance as at 1 July

Transfer from retained earnings for future
expenditure

Transfer to capital for funds expended in
the period

Closing balance as at 30 June

Parks constrained works reserve

Opening balance as at 1 July

Transfer from retained earnings for future
expenditure

Transfer to capital for funds expended in
the period

Closing balance as at 30 June

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

252 253 252 253
252 253 252 253
90,835 93,480 90,835 93,480
388 334 388 334
73 54 73 54
461 388 461 388
17,324 16,988 17,324 16,988
5,390 4,390 5,390 4,390
(1,973) (4,054) (1,973) (4,054)
20,741 17,324 20,741 17,324
18,518 13,710 18,518 13,710
11,471 6,808 11,471 6,808
(9,000) (2,000) (9,000) (2,000)
20,989 18,518 20,989 18,518
8,471 9,077 8,471 9,077
(158) (606) (158) (606)
8,313 8,471 8,313 8,471
1,960 6,354 1,960 6,354
492 768 492 768
(1,484) (5,162) (1,484) (5,162)
968 1,960 968 1,960
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21 Reserves continued

Roads constrained works reserve

Opening balance as at 1 July
Transfer from retained earnings for future
expenditure

Transfer to capital for funds expended in
the period

Closing balance as at 30 June

Water constrained works reserve

Opening balance as at 1 July
Transfer from retained earnings for future
expenditure

Transfer to capital for funds expended in
the period

Closing balance as at 30 June

Sewerage constrained works reserve

Opening balance as at 1 July
Transfer from retained earnings for future
expenditure

Transfer to capital for funds expended in
the period

Closing balance as at 30 June

Movements in recurrent reserves:

Recurrent grant funding reserve

Opening balance as at 1 July

Transfer from retained earnings for future
expenditure

Transfer to retained earnings for funds
expended in the period

Closing balance as at 30 June

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

21,139 19,425 21,139 19,425
766 2,407 766 2,407
(1,554) (693) (1,554) (693)
20,351 21,139 20,351 21,139
13,986 14,543 13,986 14,543
368 1,969 368 1,969
(3,927) (2,526) (3,927) (2,526)
10,427 13,986 10,427 13,986
11,441 11,355 11,441 11,355
1,833 3,223 1,833 3,223
(4,941) (3,137) (4,941) (3,137)
8,333 11,441 8,333 11,441
253 567 253 567
252 253 252 253
(253) (567) (253) (567)
252 253 252 253




22 Commitments for Expenditure

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Contractual commitments at balance date but
not recognised in the financial report are as
follows:
Airport - capital expenditure 3 186 - -
Fleet purchases 3,006 820 3,006 820
Flood damage assessment 1,500 5,318 1,500 5,318
Parks & Regulatory Services Projects 5,120 2,357 5,120 2,357
Road, drainage and transport Infrastructure projects 1,796 2,100 1,796 2,100
Sport & Rec Projects 110 1,220 110 1,220
Water and sewerage projects 8,360 6,079 8,360 6,079

19,895 18,080 19,892 17,894
Operating contractual commitments
Comprises Waste Management Services Expiring 2021
¢ Not later than one year 3,651 3,145 3,512 3,145
* Later than one year and not later than five years 10,591 12,579 10,118 12,579
e Later than five years - - - -

14,242 15,724 13,630 15,724

23 Contingent Liabilities
Details and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabilities are as follows:
Local Government Mutual

The Gladstone Regional Council is a member of the local government mutual liability self-insurance pool, LGM Queensland. In the event of the pool being
wound up or it is unable to meet its debts as they fall due, the trust deed and rules provide that any accumulated deficit will be met by the individual pool

members in the same proportion as their contribution is to the total pool contributions in respect to any year that a deficit arises.

The latest audited financial statements for LGM Queensland are as at 30 June 2016 and report accumulated member funds (equity) of $60,234,042 and it is

not anticipated any liability will arise.

Local Government Workcare

The Gladstone Regional Council is a member of the Queensland local government workers' compensation self-insurance scheme, Local Government
Workcare. Under this scheme the Council has provided an indemnity towards a bank guarantee to cover bad debts which may remain should the self
insurance licence be cancelled and there was insufficient funds available to cover outstanding liabilities. Only the Queensland Government's workers
compensation authority may call on any part of the guarantee should the above circumstances arise. The Council's maximum exposure (indemnity amount)
to the bank guarantee is $1,647,365.19

The latest audited financial statements for Local Government Workcare are as at 30 June 2016 and report accumulated member funds (equity) of

$42,676,161, and it is not anticipated any liability will arise
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23 Contingent Liabilities continued

Bank Guarantees

The Gladstone Regional Council has provided a bank guarantee to QR Network Pty Ltd valued at $15,000 as a bond over two blocks of land being utilised
by Gladstone Regional Council. The guarantee expires in 2028.

The Gladstone Regional Council has provided a bank guarantee to Aurizon Network Pty Ltd valued at $150,000 as an obligation under contract for the
repairs to Vehicular Bridge across Rail Corridor at approximately 0.280 Kms on the Barney Point Branch, Barney Point .
The guarantee expires on 30 September 2018.

The Gladstone Regional Council has provided a bank guarantee to Aurizon Network Pty Ltd valued at $150,000 as an obligation under contract for the
repairs to Vehicular Bridge across Rail Corridor at approximately 528.545 Kms on the North Coast Line, Barney Point .

The guarantee expires on 30 September 2018.

The Gladstone Regional Council has provided a bank guarantee to Aurizon Network Pty Ltd valued at $50,000 to ensure performance obligations under
contract for for repairs to road-over-rail vehicular bridge at Glenlyon Road, Gladstone, at approximately 5.92 kilometres on the Moura Short Line. The
guarantee expires 31 May 2019.

The Gladstone Regional Council has provided a bank guarantee to Aurizon Network Pty Ltd valued at $50,000 to ensure performance obligations under
contract for repairs to road-over-rail vehicular bridge at Red Rover Road, Gladstone at approximately 5.92 kilometres on the Our Short Line. The
guarantee expires 31 August 2019.

The Gladstone Regional Council has provided a bank guarantee to Aurizon Network Pty Ltd valued at $50,000 to ensure performance obligations under
contract for renewal of road surface at Level Crossing LX5953 across rail corridor at approximately 7.116 kilometres on the Moura Short Line The
guarantee expires 30 August 2019.

The Gladstone Regional Council has provided a bank guarantee to Aurizon Network Pty Ltd valued at $50,000 to ensure performance obligations under
contract for renewal of Road Surface at Level Crossing LX788 across rail corridor at approximately 532.3 kilometres on the North Coast Line. The
guarantee expires 30 August 2019.

24 Superannuation

The Council contributes to the Local Government Superannuation Scheme (Qld) (the scheme). The scheme is a Multi-employer Plan as defined in the

Australian Accounting Standard AASB 119 Employee Beneffits.

The Queensland Local Government Superannuation Board, the trustee of the scheme, advised that the local government superannuation scheme was a
complying superannuation scheme for the purpose of the Commonwealth Superannuation Industry (Supervision) legislation.

The scheme has three elements referred to as:

¢ The City Defined Benefits Fund (CDBF) which covers former members of the City Super Defined Benefits Fund

» The Regional Defined Benefits Fund (Regional DBF) which covers defined benefit fund members working for regional local governments; and
® The Accumulation Benefits Fund (ABF)

The ABF is a defined contribution scheme as defined in AASB 119. Council has no liability to or interest in the ABF other than the payment of the
statutory contributions as required by the Local Government Act 2009 .

Council does not have any employees who are members of the CDBF and, therefore, is not exposed to the obligations, assets or costs associated with
this fund.

The Regional DBF is a defined benefit plan as defined in AASB119. The Council is not able to account for the Regional DBF as a defined benefit plan in
accordance with AASB119 because the scheme is unable to account to the Council for its proportionate share of the defined benefit obligation, plan
assets and costs. The funding policy adopted in respect of the Regional DBF is directed at ensuring that the benefits accruing to members and
beneficiaries are fully funded as they fall due.



24 Superannuation continued

To ensure the ongoing solvency of the Regional DBF, the scheme's trustee can vary the rate of contributions from relevant local government employers
subject to advice from the scheme's actuary. As at the reporting date, no changes had been made to prescribed employer contributions which remain at

12% of employee assets and there are no known requirements to change the rate of contributions.

Any amount by which the fund is over or under funded would only affect future benefits and contributions to the Regional DBF, and is not an asset or

liability of the Council. Accordingly there is no recognition in the financial statements of any over or under funding of the scheme.

As at the reporting date, the assets of the scheme are sufficient to meet the vested benefits.

The most recent actuarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 July 2015. The actuary indicated that “At the valuation date of 1 July

2015, the net assets of the scheme exceeded the vested benefits and the scheme was in a satisfactory financial position as at the valuation date."
In the 2015 actuarial report the actuary has recommended no change to the employer contribution levels at this time.

Under the Local Government Act 2009 the trustee of the scheme has the power to levy additional contributions on councils which have employees in the
Regional DBF when the actuary advises such additional contributions are payable - normally when the assets of the DBF are insufficient to meet

members' benefits.

There are currently 65 entities contributing to the Regional DBF plan and any changes in contribution rates would apply equally to all 65 entities.

Gladstone Regional Council made less than 4% of the total contributions to the plan in the 2016-17 financial year.

The next actuarial investigation will be conducted as at 1 July 2018.

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
The amount of superannuation contributions
paid by Gladstone Regional Council to the
superannuation scheme in this period for the
benefit of employees was: 5 5,916 6,164 5,630 5,840
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25 Correction of Error

In the process of valuing Council's assets at 30 June 2017, it was discovered that certain road assets not owned by Council had been included as part of 30 June

2016 Road, Drainage and Transport Infrastructure (RDTI) class of non-current asset valuation

The gross value of the assets incorrectly recognised was $72.156m with an associated accumulated depreciation amount of $16.029m. The net amount of this

transaction of $56.127m was taken to the asset revaluation surplus as at 30 June 2016. These amounts are the same for both the Council and Consolidated

entities. Because the transaction occurred as at 30 June 2016, there was no overstatement of depreciation expense for the year then ended.

As this error has occurred during the prior period, the comparative figures for these financial statements as at and for the year ended 30 June 2016 have been

restated by $56.127m as follows:

Statements of Comprehensive Income

Increase in asset revaluation surplus

Total comprehensive income for the year

Statements of Financial Position

Property, plant and equipment
Total non-current assets

Total assets

Net community assets

Asset revaluation surplus

Total community equity

Statements of Changes in Equity

Increase in Asset revaluation surplus

Asset revaluation surplus balance as at 30 June 2016

Total equity balance as at 30 June 2016

Consolidated Council
Original 2016 Restated 2016 Original 2016 Restated 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
181,705 125,578 181,705 125,578
208,253 152,127 207,300 151,173
Consolidated Council
Original 2016 Restated 2016 Original 2016 Restated 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2,264,764 2,208,637 2,172,211 2,116,084
2,270,886 2,214,759 2,285,583 2,229,456
2,407,519 2,351,392 2,410,223 2,354,096
2,232,345 2,176,218 2,236,118 2,179,991
739,815 683,688 753,767 697,640
2,232,345 2,176,218 2,236,118 2,179,991
Consolidated Council
Original 2016 Restated 2016 Original 2016 Restated 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
181,705 125,578 181,705 125,578
739,815 683,688 753,767 697,640
2,232,345 2,176,218 2,236,118 2,179,991



26 Events After the Balance Date

During October 2017, the southern Gladstone region experienced a major flooding event which was subsequently declared a natural disaster under National

Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements (NDRRA). Given the nature of the event it is too early to reliably estimate the total costs required to repair vital

infrastructure damaged, however we expect to recover the majority of the expenditure through the NDRRA Fund.

27 Trust Funds

Funds held in the trust account on behalf of outside parties include those funds from the sale of land for arrears in rates, deposits for the contracted sale of

land, security deposits lodged to guarantee performance and unclaimed monies paid into the trust account by Council. Council performs only a custodian role

in respect of these monies and because the monies cannot be used for Council purposes, they are not considered revenue nor brought to account in the

financial Statements.

The monies are disclosed for information purposes only.

Trust funds held for outside parties

Monies collected or held on behalf of other entities

yet to be paid out to or on behalf of those entities
Security deposits

28 Reconciliation of Net Result for the Year to

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities

Net result

Non-cash operating items:

Non-cash contributions included in fixed assets
Revaluation adjustments

Change in future rehabilitation costs

Finance costs

Fair value adjustment

Depreciation and amortisation

Landfill provision adjustment

Financing activities

Borrowing costs

Investing and development activities:
Capital grants and contributions

Net loss on disposal of non current assets
Net loss on write-off of non-current assets

Capital work in progress write off

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase/(decrease) in payables

Increase/(decrease) in provisions

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
472 411 472 411
3,864 3,496 3,864 3,496
4,336 3,907 4,336 3,907

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
12,724 26,548 13,158 25,595
4(b) (4,363) (1,994) (4,363) (1,994)
8 798 638 798 638
54 38 54 38
153 (517) 22 (415)
7 267 283 267 283
45,502 46,323 43,038 43,547
738 (221) 738 (221)
43,149 44,550 40,554 41,876
7 8,236 9,357 6,154 7,278
4(b) (17,190) (25,941) (17,190) (25,941)
8 17,424 5,085 17,434 5,086
8 1,410 2,278 1,410 2,278
14 5,591 678 5,487 625
7,235 (17,900) 7,141 (17,952)
1,462 (5,255) 2,445 (3,226)
107 28 108 26
2,722 (2,279) 2,832 (1,232)
(14) 3 128 (205)
4,277 (7,504) 5,513 (4,637)
75,621 55,052 72,520 52,160
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29 Financial Instrument

Gladstone Regional Council activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including interest rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk.

This Note provides information (both qualitative and quantitative) to assist statement users evaluate the significance of financial instruments on the

Council's financial position and financial performance, including the nature and extent of risks and how the Council manages these exposures.

Financial risk management

Exposure to financial risk is managed in accordance with Council approved policies on financial risk management. These policies focus on managing the
volatility of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council. The Council minimises its exposure
to financial risk in the following ways:

Investments in financial assets are only made where those assets are with a bank or another financial institution in Australia. The Council does not invest in
derivatives or other high risk investments.

When the Council borrows, it borrows from the Queensland Treasury Corporation unless another financial institution can offer a more beneficial rate, taking
into account any risk. Borrowing by the Council is regulated by the provisions of the Statutory Bodies Financial Arrangements Act 1982 .

Gladstone Regional Council measures risk exposure using a variety of methods as follows:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. These obligations arise principally

from the Council's investments and receivables from customers.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of credit counterparty ability to meet payment obligations. The carrying amount of financial

assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Investments in financial instruments are required to be made with Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) or similar state/commonwealth bodies or

financial institutions in Australia, in line with the requirements of the Statutory Bodies Financial Arrangements Act 1982 .
No collateral is held as security relating to the financial assets held by the Council.

The following table represents the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the carrying amounts of financial assets at the end of the reporting period:

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016

Financial assets Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Cash and cash equivalents 9 120,375 106,201 108,479 95,009
Receivables - rates 10 15,318 14,071 15,318 14,071
Receivables - other 10 10,745 13,475 10,640 12,673
Other credit exposures

Guarantees 23 515 365 515 365
Local Government Workcare 23 1,647 1,896 1,647 1,896
Total financial assets 148,600 136,008 136,599 124,014




29 Financial Instruments continued

Other financial assets

Other investments are held with financial institutions, which are rated from AAA to BBB- or unrated based on rating agency Standards and Poor ratings, and

whilst not capital guaranteed, the likelihood of a credit failure is assessed as remote.

Trade and other receivables

In the case of rate receivables, the Council has the power to sell the property to recover any defaulted amounts. In effect this power protects the Council

against credit risk in the case of defaults.

In other cases, the Council assesses the credit risk before providing goods or services and applies normal business credit protection procedures to minimise

the risk.

By the nature of Council's operations, there is a geographical concentration of risk in the Council's area. Because the area is largely commercial, there is also

a concentration in the commercial sector.

Ageing of past due receivables and the amount of any impairment is disclosed in the following table:

Consolidated Council
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Not past due 24,439 25,387 24,862 25,756
Past due 31-60 days 398 1,285 56 304
Past due 61-90 days 80 164 79 49
More than 90 days 1,388 1,057 1,203 856
Impaired (242) (347) (242) (220)
Total 26,063 27,546 25,958 26,745

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the situation where the Council may encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by

delivering cash or another financial asset.

The Council is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business and borrowings from the Queensland Treasury Corporation and

the Queensland Government for capital works.

The Council manages its exposure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash deposits and undrawn facilities, both short and long term, to cater for

unexpected volatility in cash flows. These facilities are disclosed in Borrowings Note 17 and Note 18.
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29 Financial Instruments continued

Liquidity risk (cont'd)

The following table sets out the liquidity risk of financial liabilities held by the Council. It represents the remaining contractual cashflows (principal and

interest) of financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period, excluding the impact of netting agreements:

Consolidated 0to1year 1to 5 years Over 5 years conI:;t:tlual Carrying
cash flows amount
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
30 June 2017
Trade and other payables 15 21,380 - - 21,380 21,380
Loans - QTC 17 16,063 63,810 107,268 187,141 131,936
Loans - other 18 734 2,424 3,939 7,097 5,511
38,177 66,234 111,207 215,618 158,827
30 June 2016
Total capital revenue 15 18,624 - - 18,624 18,624
Loans - QTC 17 16,063 64,175 122,966 203,204 139,755
Loans - other 18 734 2,552 4,545 7,831 5,978
35,421 66,727 127,511 229,659 164,357
Council 0 to 1year 1to 5years Over 5 years conI:)::tlual Carrying
cash flows amount
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
30 June 2017
Trade and other payables 15 20,448 - - 20,448 20,448
Loans - QTC 17 16,063 63,810 107,268 187,141 131,936
Loans - other 18 734 2,424 3,939 7,097 5,511
37,245 66,234 111,207 214,686 157,895
30 June 2016
Trade and other payables 15 17,598 - - 17,598 17,598
Loans - QTC 17 16,063 64,175 122,966 203,204 139,755
Loans - other 18 734 2,552 4,545 7,831 5,978
34,395 66,727 127,511 228,633 163,331

The outflows in the above table are not expected to occur significantly earlier and are not expected to be for significantly different amounts than indicated in

the table.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Council's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.



29 Financial Instruments continued

Market risk (cont'd)

Interest rate risk

The Council is exposed to interest rate risk through its borrowings from the Queensland Treasury Corporation, Department of Infrastructure and Planning,

and the Department of Housing and investments held with financial institutions.

The risk in borrowing is effectively managed by borrowing mainly from the Queensland Treasury Corporation and having access to a mix of floating and

fixed funding sources so that the interest rate risk exposure can be minimised. Interest rate risk in other areas is minimal.

The Council does not undertake any hedging of interest rate risk.

Sensitivity

Sensitivity to interest rate movements is shown for variable financial assets and liabilities based on the carrying amount at reporting date.

The following interest rate sensitivity analysis depicts what effect a reasonably possible change in interest rates (assumed to be 1%) would have on the
profit and equity, based on the carrying values at the end of the reporting period. The calculation assumes that the change in interest rates would be held

constant over the period.

Net carrying

amount Effect on Net Result Effect on Equity
1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Consolidated
30 June 2017
Cash assets 9 120,375 1,204 (1,204) 1,204 (1,204)
Interest-bearing loans 17 (131,936) (1,319) 1,319 (1,319) 1,319
Net total (11,561) (115) 115 (115) 115
30 June 2016
Cash assets 9 106,201 1,062 (1,062) 1,062 (1,062)
Interest-bearing loans 17 (139,755) (1,398) 1,398 (1,398) 1,398
Net total (33,554) (336) 336 (336) 336
Council
30 June 2017
Cash assets 9 108,479 1,085 (1,085) 1,085 (1,085)
Interest-bearing loans 17 (131,936) (1,319) 1,319 (1,319) 1,319
Net total (23,457) (234) 234 (234) 234
30 June 2016
Cash assets 9 95,009 950 (950) 950 (950)
Interest-bearing loans 17 (139,755) (1,398) 1,398 (1,398) 1,398
Net total (44,746) (448) 448 (448) 448
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29 Financial Instruments continued

Market risk (cont'd)
Sensitivity (cont'd
In relation to the QTC loans held by the Council, the following has been applied:

e QTC Fixed Rate Loan - financial instruments with fixed interest rates which are carried at amortised cost are not subject to interest rate

sensitivity.

e QTC Generic Debt Pool - the generic debt pool products approximate a fixed rate loan. There is negligible impact on interest sensitivity

from changes in interest rates for generic debt pool borrowings.

Fair value

The fair value of trade and other receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the original transaction, less any allowance for

impairment.

The fair value of borrowings with QTC is based on the market value of debt outstanding. The market value of a debt obligation is the discounted value of
future cash flows based on prevailing market rates and represents the amount required to be repaid if this was to occur at balance date. The market value

of debt is provided by QTC and is disclosed in Note 17.

QTC applies a book rate approach in the management of debt and interest rate risk, to limit the impact of the market value movements to clients' cost of

funding. The book value represents the carrying value based on amortised cost using the effective interest method.

30 National Competition Policy

a) Activities to which the code of competitive conduct is applied
A "business activity" of a local government is divided into two categories:

(a) Roads business activity

¢ The construction or maintenance of State controlled roads for which the local government submits an offer to carry out work in response to
a tender invitation, other than through a sole supplier arrangement.
¢ Submission of a competitive tender for construction of road maintenance on the local government's roads which the local government has

put out to tender, or called for by another local government.

(b) Other business activities

¢ Trading in goods and services to clients in competition with the private sector, or

e The submission of a competitive tender in the local government's own tendering process in competition with others for the provision of goods and

services to itself.

Excluded activities are;
(i) library services, and

(i) an activity or part thereof prescribed by legislation
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29 Financial Instruments continued

Market risk (cont'd)

Interest rate risk

The Council is exposed to interest rate risk through its borrowings from the Queensland Treasury Corporation, Department of Infrastructure and Planning,

and the Department of Housing and investments held with financial institutions.

The risk in borrowing is effectively managed by borrowing mainly from the Queensland Treasury Corporation and having access to a mix of floating and

fixed funding sources so that the interest rate risk exposure can be minimised. Interest rate risk in other areas is minimal.

The Council does not undertake any hedging of interest rate risk.

Sensitivity

Sensitivity to interest rate movements is shown for variable financial assets and liabilities based on the carrying amount at reporting date.

The following interest rate sensitivity analysis depicts what effect a reasonably possible change in interest rates (assumed to be 1%) would have on the
profit and equity, based on the carrying values at the end of the reporting period. The calculation assumes that the change in interest rates would be held

constant over the period.

Net carrying

amount Effect on Net Result Effect on Equity
1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Consolidated
30 June 2017
Cash assets 9 120,375 1,204 (1,204) 1,204 (1,204)
Interest-bearing loans 17 (131,936) (1,319) 1,319 (1,319) 1,319
Net total (11,561) (115) 115 (115) 115
30 June 2016
Cash assets 9 106,201 1,062 (1,062) 1,062 (1,062)
Interest-bearing loans 17 (139,755) (1,398) 1,398 (1,398) 1,398
Net total (33,554) (336) 336 (336) 336
Council
30 June 2017
Cash assets 9 108,479 1,085 (1,085) 1,085 (1,085)
Interest-bearing loans 17 (131,936) (1,319) 1,319 (1,319) 1,319
Net total (23,457) (234) 234 (234) 234
30 June 2016
Cash assets 9 95,009 950 (950) 950 (950)
Interest-bearing loans 17 (139,755) (1,398) 1,398 (1,398) 1,398
Net total (44,746) (448) 448 (448) 448
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29 Financial Instruments continued

Market risk (cont'd)
Sensitivity (cont'd
In relation to the QTC loans held by the Council, the following has been applied:

e QTC Fixed Rate Loan - financial instruments with fixed interest rates which are carried at amortised cost are not subject to interest rate

sensitivity.

e QTC Generic Debt Pool - the generic debt pool products approximate a fixed rate loan. There is negligible impact on interest sensitivity

from changes in interest rates for generic debt pool borrowings.
Fair value

The fair value of trade and other receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the original transaction, less any allowance for

impairment.

The fair value of borrowings with QTC is based on the market value of debt outstanding. The market value of a debt obligation is the discounted value of
future cash flows based on prevailing market rates and represents the amount required to be repaid if this was to occur at balance date. The market value

of debt is provided by QTC and is disclosed in Note 17.

QTC applies a book rate approach in the management of debt and interest rate risk, to limit the impact of the market value movements to clients' cost of
funding. The book value represents the carrying value based on amortised cost using the effective interest method.
30 National Competition Policy
a) Activities to which the code of competitive conduct is applied
A "business activity" of a local government is divided into two categories:

(a) Roads business activity
¢ The construction or maintenance of State controlled roads for which the local government submits an offer to carry out work in response to

a tender invitation, other than through a sole supplier arrangement.
¢ Submission of a competitive tender for construction of road maintenance on the local government's roads which the local government has

put out to tender, or called for by another local government.

(b) Other business activities

e Trading in goods and services to clients in competition with the private sector, or

e The submission of a competitive tender in the local government's own tendering process in competition with others for the provision of goods and

services to itself.

Excluded activities are;
(i) library services, and
(i) an activity or part thereof prescribed by legislation
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30 National Competition Policy continued

a) Activities to which the code of competitive conduct is applied (cont'd)

Local government may elect to apply a Code of Competitive Conduct (CCC) to their identified business activities. This requires the application of full

cost pricing, identifying the cost of community service obligations (CSO) and eliminating the advantages and disadvantages of public ownership

within that activity. The application of the CCC to the roads business activity is compulsory.

The CSO value is determined by Council, and represents any activities cost(s) which would not be incurred if the activities' primary objective was to

make a profit. The Council provides funding from general revenue to the business activity to cover the cost of providing non-commercial services of

costs deemed to be CSO's by the Council.

Council applies full cost pricing to its business activities which involves the recognition of both Community Service Obligations and Competitive

Neutrality Adjustments.

Gladstone Regional Council has identified business activities in the following areas:

¢ Gladstone Entertainment Centre
* Roads

¢ Aquatic Centre

e Water

* Waste Management
® Plant Operations
e Building Certification

e Sewerage

Details of Council's performance for these business activities are summarised in Note 30 (b).

(b) The following activity statements are for activities subject to the competitive code of conduct

Revenue
Revenue for services provided to Council

Revenue for services provided to external clients
Expenditure

Operating expenditure

Competitive neutrality adjustments applied

Return/(deficit) for the financial year

Target - return for the period
Return basis for business activity

Gladstone Gladstone Aquatic Building
Entertainment & Centre Certification
Convention Centre
30 June 2017 30 June 2017 30 June 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000
1,877 12 950
1,877 12 950
4,665 669 2,374
24 - 24
4,689 669 2,398
(2,812) (657) (1,448)
1,998 570 58
Asset Asset Asset
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30 National Competition Policy continued

(b) The following activity statements are for activities subject to the competitive code of conduct (cont'd)

Revenue
Revenue for services provided to Council

Revenue for services provided to external clients

Expenditure
Operating expenditure

Competitive neutrality adjustments applied

Total capital revenue
Return/(deficit) for the financial year

Target - return for the period

Return basis for business activity

Revenue
Revenue for services provided to Council

Revenue for services provided to external clients
Expenditure

Operating expenditure

Competitive neutrality adjustments applied

Return/(deficit) for the financial year

Target - return for the period

Return basis for business activity

Roads Water Sewerage
30 June 2017 30 June 2017 30 June 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000
43,865 40,674 28,952
4,846 - -
48,711 40,674 28,952
46,854 34,048 20,277
116 74 54
46,970 34,122 20,331
1,741 6,552 8,621
937 3,848 6,569
Turnover Asset Asset
Wast:
aste Plant Operations
Management
30 June 2017 30 June 2017
$'000 $'000
- 11,082
15,542 -
15,542 11,082
16,216 8,993
161 21
16,377 9,014
(835) 2,068
1,977 1,504
Turnover Asset




30 National Competition Policy continued

a) Activities to which the code of competitive conduct is applied (cont'd)

Local government may elect to apply a Code of Competitive Conduct (CCC) to their identified business activities. This requires the application of full

cost pricing, identifying the cost of community service obligations (CSO) and eliminating the advantages and disadvantages of public ownership

within that activity. The application of the CCC to the roads business activity is compulsory.

The CSO value is determined by Council, and represents any activities cost(s) which would not be incurred if the activities' primary objective was to

make a profit. The Council provides funding from general revenue to the business activity to cover the cost of providing non-commercial services of

costs deemed to be CSO's by the Council.

Council applies full cost pricing to its business activities which involves the recognition of both Community Service Obligations and Competitive

Neutrality Adjustments.

Gladstone Regional Council has identified business activities in the following areas:

¢ Gladstone Entertainment Centre
* Roads

¢ Aquatic Centre

e Water

* Waste Management
¢ Plant Operations
e Building Certification

e Sewerage

Details of Council's performance for these business activities are summarised in Note 30 (b).

(b) The following activity statements are for activities subject to the competitive code of conduct

Revenue
Revenue for services provided to Council

Revenue for services provided to external clients
Expenditure

Operating expenditure

Competitive neutrality adjustments applied

Return/(deficit) for the financial year

Target - return for the period
Return basis for business activity

Gladstone Gladstone Aquatic Building
Entertainment & Centre Certification
Convention Centre
30 June 2017 30 June 2017 30 June 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000
1,877 12 950
1,877 12 950
4,665 669 2,374
24 - 24
4,689 669 2,398
(2,812) (657) (1,448)
1,998 570 58
Asset Asset Asset

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

137



138

30 National Competition Policy continued

(b) The following activity statements are for activities subject to the competitive code of conduct (cont'd)

Revenue
Revenue for services provided to Council

Revenue for services provided to external clients

Expenditure
Operating expenditure

Competitive neutrality adjustments applied

Total capital revenue
Return/(deficit) for the financial year

Target - return for the period

Return basis for business activity

Revenue
Revenue for services provided to Council

Revenue for services provided to external clients
Expenditure

Operating expenditure

Competitive neutrality adjustments applied

Return/(deficit) for the financial year

Target - return for the period

Return basis for business activity

Roads Water Sewerage
30 June 2017 30 June 2017 30 June 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000
43,865 40,674 28,952
4,846 - -
48,711 40,674 28,952
46,854 34,048 20,277
116 74 54
46,970 34,122 20,331
1,741 6,552 8,621
937 3,848 6,569
Turnover Asset Asset
Wast:
aste Plant Operations
Management
30 June 2017 30 June 2017
$'000 $'000
- 11,082
15,542 -
15,542 11,082
16,216 8,993
161 21
16,377 9,014
(835) 2,068
1,977 1,504
Turnover Asset




31 Transactions with Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries
The group consists of Gladstone Regional Council and one subsidiary. The subsidiary, Gladstone Airport Corporation, is consolidated (Note 12).

The following transactions occurred with subsidiaries:

Goods and services supplied by council, on

Controlled Entity Receipts .
normal terms and conditions

o Income Tax Equivalent
Subsidiary Dividends / Compeititve Interest Received IT and Phone Charges | Rates and Water
Neutrality Margin

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Gladstone Airport Corporation 716 639 2,043 110 81

In accordance with the Statement of Corporate Intent, a dividend was deemed to be payable to Council to the value of up to 50% of the net after tax profit for
the financial year ended 30 June 2016.

(b) Transactions with key management personnel (KMP)

KMP include the Mayor, councillors, council's Chief Executive Officer and some executive management.
The compensation paid to KMP for 2016/17 comprises:

30 June 2017
$'000
Short-term employee benefits 2,384
Post-employment benefits 257
Long-term benefits 129
Termination benefits 357
Total 3,127

(c) Transactions with other related parties

Other related parties include the close family members of KMP and any entities controlled or jointly controlled by KMP or their close family members. Close
family members include a spouse, child and dependent of a KMP or their spouse.

Details of transactions between council and other related parties are disclosed below:

Details of Transaction Additional information 20517
F dch h d t titi trolled by k
ees and charges charged to entities controlled by key 31(0)() 60
management personnel
Purchase of materials and services from entities controlled by 31(c)ii) 197
key management personnel

(i) The fees and charges charged to entities controlled by key management personnel were an arm's length basis in accordance with the schedule of fees and
charges adopted by council. The total disclosed includes the following:

Fees and charges charged to entities controlled by key management i i
personnel Details of related party transactions S
Fees relating to enquiries for outstandin,
Search fees & 9 & 53
rates & water charges
Application fees & charges Building, development, infrastructure fees 15
Other fees and charges Various other related parties 1
Total 69
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31 Transactions with Related Parties continued

(c) Transactions with other related parties (cont'd)

(ii) All close family members of key management personnel were employed through an arm’s length process. They are paid in
accordance with the Award for the job they perform.

The council employs 619 staff of which only 1 are close family members of key management personnel.

(i) The consolidated entity purchased the following material and services from entities that are controlled by members of key

management personnel. All purchases were at arm’s length and were in the normal course of council operations:

30 June 2017
$'000
Construction of Buildings 189
Consultancy services 1
Donations to Sporting & Community Groups 1
Provision of services 1
Provision of staff amenities & catering 5
Total 197

(d) Outstanding balances

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties:

Receivables Payables

. Amounts owed to
Amounts owed by entities

Amounts owed by Amounts owed to entities controlled by
. controlled by key .
Controlled Entities Controlled Entities key management
management personnel
personnel
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Past due 31-60 days $12 -
Past due 61-90 days - -
More than 90 days overdue - -

Total Owing $12 -

No expense has been recognised in the current year or prior year for bad or doubtful debts in respect of amounts owed by related parties.

(i) The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with Controlled Entities:

30 June 2017
Note $|000
Trade receivables - current 10 1,517
Trade receivables - non- current 10 33,716

(e) Loans and guarantees to/from related parties

Council does not make loans to or receive loans from related parties. No guarantees have been provided.

f) Transactions with related parties that have not been disclosed

Most of the entities and people that are related parties of council live and operate within the Gladstone region. Therefore, on a regular basis ordinary citizen
transactions occur between Council and its related parties. Some examples include:

- Payment of rates

- Use of the swimming pool

- Dog registration

- Borrowing books from a council library

Council has not included these types of transaction in its disclosure, where they are made on the same terms and conditions available to the general public.
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Management Certificate
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Management Certificate
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Tha genaral purposa financial statements havwe been prepared pursuant 1o sections 178 and 177 of the Loced Govemment Ragiiahon 2072
(e Regulation) and ofher prescribed requiraments.

In pccordanca with section 313(5) of the Regulpbon wa cerify thal:

(i) the prescribed requiremants of the Local Gowemmand Ao 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2072 for the esablishment and
keeping of accounts have boen compiled with in all material respects, and

(i) the general purpose financial statements. as sef cut on pages 1 0 61, present a true and fair view . in accordance with Austrakan
Accounting Standards, of the Cowuncile and the consobdated anity's ransactions for the financial yeas and financial position at the end

aff the year.
_,-"
L r Y / '.-. —
A e
. o=y
ot ) -

Mayor Chief Ex  utive Officer
Matt Bumeit Roslyn Baker
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Independent Auditor's Report

for the year ended 30 June 2017

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Councillors of Gladsions Ragional Couwndcl

Report on the audit of the financial report

Crpinion

| have sudited the sccompanying financial repon of Gladstons Regional Councll (the council)
and its controled entities (the group).

In my opindon, the financial regort:

aj gives a truee and fair view of the councils and group's financial position as a8 30 June
2017, and of thair fnancial pedformance and cash flcws for the year then ended

b complies with the Local Governmaent Aof 2008, the Local Govemmant Regulation 2012
and Australian Acoounting Standasnds

The financial report comprises the staterments of financial pesition as at 30 June 2017, the
slaterments of comprehensive incomae, stelemenis of changes in equity and statemants of
icash fiows for the year then ended, notes fo the fmancial statements including significant
accounting polickes and obher explanatony information, and tha cartificate given by the Mayor
and Chiel Executive Officar.

Basis for opinion

I conducted my audit in accordancs with the Audiior-Genaral of Quesnsland Audiling
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Audiling Standards. My responsibilities under
those standands are further described in the Audiior’s responsibiities for the audif of the
fingnoial repor section of my regort,

| am independant of the councll and grows in accondance with the elhical requirements of the
Acoounting Professional and Ethical Standands Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Frofassional Accownlants (the Code) that ane relevant to my audit of the financal repon in
Australia. | have also fullilled my other athical responsbilites in accordanca with tha Coda
and the Audifor-General of Queensiand Awditing Stendards.

I badiave that the audit evidence | have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinecn.

Other information

Cither information comprises the information included in Gladsions Regional Council's anmuall
report for the year ended 30 June 2017, but does nol include the financial report and my
auditor's repod theraon, Al the date of this audilors report, the other information was the
currant year financial sustainability statemant and long-tesm financial sustainability
slalamant.

My Gpinion on the financial report doss not cover the other informalion and accordingly | do
not express any form of assurance concluesion thereon, However, as reguined by the Local
Gevemmant Regulation 2012, | hawve exprassed a separabe opinion on the cumrent year
financial sustainability statemant.

In connection with my awdit of the finandial reped, my responsibdity is 1o read the other
information and, in doing so, considar whather the other information is materally inconsistent
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with the financial report and my knowledge oblained in the audil or olhenyise appaars 1o be
materally misstated.

If, baged on the work | have performed, | conclude thal there is a material misstatement of
this infarmation, | am required (o report that fact. | hawe nothing 1o report in this regard.

Rezponsibilities of the eouncil far the financial report

The council is responsibde for the preparation of the financlal report that ghwes a tree and fair
vigw in accordance with the Local Governmen! Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation
2012 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such Intermal controd as: the council
determings i nécessary (o enable the preparation of the financial repord that is free from
matedal misstatarnant, whather dua (o fraud or ednor,

The council i also responsible for assessing the councils and group™s ablity to continue as &
golng concam, disclosing, as apphcable, matters relating 1o going concam and using the
gaing concimn basis of accounting unless | is intended to abolish the coundll or 1o otherwize
ceasa oparations of the group,

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable sssurance about whather the financal repor as a
wihiobe is free from materal misstalement, whether due to frawd or emor, and to izsue an
auditer's report thal includes my cpinion. Reasonable assurance |5 a high level of assurancs,
but is nod & guarantes thatl an audit conducted in accondance with the Australian Auditing
Standards will always datect a material mizstatemant when [t exists. Mestatements can arise
from fraud or emor and are considered matarial if, individeally or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected lo influence the econamic decizions of users taken on the basis of
this financial report.

Az part of an audit in accordance with the Auss alian Auditing Slandards, | exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also.

=  |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
dua to frawd or amor, design and parform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropsiate to provide a bass for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a materal misstatemant resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from ermor, &s frawd may invohe collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misreprasentations, or the ovamide of internal condrol,

Obtain an understanding of intermal control relevant 1o the audi in order 1o design audit
proceduras that are appropriate in the circemstances, but not for expressing an opinlon
on the effectivenass of the councls or group’s intemal comtrol.

- Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounling poicies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosunes made by the council.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the council's and group's usa of the going concam
basks of accounting and, based on the audd evidence obtained, whether a material
uncartainty axists ralated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt an tha
eouncil's or group’s ability to continue as a going concedn, f | sonslude that a malerial
unicartainty axists, | am reguired (o draw atbention in my awdior's report to the related
digclogures in the financial repon or, i such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify my
opinion. | base my conchesions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my
auditor's repor. Howewer, fubure events or conditions may cause the cowncil or group
1o ceasa to continue as 8 going concarm.
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L Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financal repord, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transaclions
and evenis in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Cibfain sufficient appropriate awdit evidencs regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activitias within the group lo express an opinicn on the financial
report. | am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the group. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinicn.

| communicate with the council regarding, amang olher matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and signficant audit findings, including any significant deficiancies in

internal controd that | identify during my awdil.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with 5,40 of the Auwdifor-General Act 2008, for the year ended 30 June 2017
al | received all the informalion and explanations | required

B}  Inmy opinion, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping
of accounts were complied with in all maleral respects.

QUEEMSLA N,
0. Ao 30 0CT 200
DASTOD Aupir oEFCE Cueensland Audn Orffice

as delegate of the Audilor-Ganaral Brisbane
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Financial Sustainability Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Measures of Financial Sustainability

Councile performance at 30 June 2047 againgd key inancial ratios and targats

Measuros of Financial Hewe this Maasurs 8 Actual -

Sustainabiiit calculated Consolidatd Actusl - Councit

Operating Surplus Rati MNed rosult {eecluding
capital ibems) divided by
tolal operating revenue &% A%
fexcluding capital
itesmes}

Capital expenditure on
e neplkacemant of

fssed Sustainability Raso assels divided by 4% A%
ﬂﬂm& EEpE RS,

Tedal linhilities lnss
cLETent ppsets diviced

Net Financial Liabiities Ratic by total opanating 10% 18%
rgvenue (eaclsding

Mote 1 = Basis of Preparation

The cumeni year financial sus@inabiity s@temend is a special pepose stabemen? prepared in sccondance with the reguirements of the Local
Governmant Regulaton 2012 and the Financial Management {Sustainability) Guideline 2013, The amounts used fo calaulate the free reporfed

Target

(Graatar than §0%

ot greater fan
&S

measunes ane prepared on an accrual basis and ana diswn from the Counsls audited general punpose Tinancal stalements for the year

ended 30 June 201T.
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Certificate of Accuracy
Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Certificate of Accuracy
for the current year financial sustainability statement prepared as at 30 June 2017

This current-year financial susiainability statemont has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local Governmmenl
Reguiation 2012 (the regulation).

In accordanca with Section 212({5) of the Regulaiion we cartify that this cument-year financial susiainability stalement has been

accuralely calculaled.
JHHJSL A W
C ' H 1]
Mayor Chief = -ukive Officer
Matt Burnestt Roslyn Baker

bt 10,47 o 25,10, ]
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Independent Auditor's Report:Financial Sustainability
for the year ended 30 June 2017

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Counciliors of Gladsiona Ragional Councl

Report on the Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement
Opdndan
I hawe audited the accompanying curment-yaar financial sustainability statemant of Gladsions Reglonal

Council and the consolidabed entity for the year ended 30 June 2017, comprising the statement,
explanatory noles, and the cedificate of accuracy given by the Mayor and the Chisl Execulive Officer,

In accordance with section 212 of the Local Governmen! Regulation 2012, in my opinlon, in all raledal
raspacts, the curment year financial sustainability statemant of Gladsiona Regional Council and the
consolidated entity for the vear ended 30 June 2017 has baen accuralely calculated.

Basls of opinlon

| conduciad my awdit in accordance with the Audior-General of Queansfand Auditimg Stamdard's, which
ncorporale the Australian Audifing Slandards. My responsibilities under those standards are furthar
described in the Audior's responsibiities for the audit of the curent-poar fnancial sustainabiily statemant
saction of my repod.

| am indepandant of the council in accordance with the athical requiremants of the Accounting Prefessional
and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accounlavls (the Code) that are
redervant to ry awdit of the statemeant in Australia. | have also fulfilled my other althical responsibililies in
accordanca with the Code and the Asdifor-Genaral of Quesnsland Auditing Standerds.

| belgve that (he audit evidenca | have oblained is sufficient and appropriale fo provide a basks for my
cpHinkon,
Emphasis of matter — basis of accounting

I draw atiention to Node 1 which describes the basis of accounting. The current-year financial sustainability
stalement has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management (Sustainability} Guideline 2013
for the purpcse of fulfillihg the council's reporting responsibiliies under the Local Govemmen

Regulation 2012. As a result, the siatemant may not be suitable for another punpose. My oplnion |2 nod
rrodilied i respect of this matier,

Other information

Ofhar information comprises the information included in Gladsione Regional Council's annual report for tha
year anded 30 June 2017, but does not include the current year financial suslainability statemant and my
auditor's repor thereon. Al the dale of this auddor's report, the other information was the general purpose
financial statements and kong-term financial sustainability statemant.

My opinion on the current year financial sustainability stalement does not cover the other information and
accordingly | do not express any form of assurance conclusion theneon, However, as requingd by the Local
Government Regulation 2012, | have expressed a separate opinkon on the general purpose financial report.

In connaction with my audit of the financial reped. my responsibility is 1o read the other information and, in
doing s0, consider whether the athar infermation s materially inconsistent with the financial report and my
kncwledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears fo be matarally misstated.

i, basad on the work | hawe performed, | conclude that thens ks a materal missiatement of this information,
I arm reguired bo report thal fact. | have nothing to repon in this regand,

Responsibilities of the councll for the current-year financial sustalnability statement

The council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentalion of the current-year financial
sustainabilily stalement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012, The council's
ragponsibility alzo includas such intamal control as the councl detarmines (& necesgany 16 enable the
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praparation and fair presentation of tha statemeant thal s accurately calculated and is free from maberial
missiatement, whathar due (o frewd or armod.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the current-year financial sustalnability statemant

My objactives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whather the curent-year financial sustainabllity
slaternent as & whole & frea from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ar edrar, and b Sl an
audilor's repo that includes my opinlon. Reasonabde assurance i a high level of assuranca, bl is not a
guarantes that an audit conducted in acoordance with the Austrakan Auditing Standards will absays debect
& malarial misatalament whan it exists. Missiaternents can anfse from fraud o emor and ane considenad
matesial i, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 1o influence the economic
decigions of usars laken on the basis of this stalemant.

My respongibility doas nol extend 1o forming an opinion on the appropriatenass or relevance of the repored
ratios, nor on the councl's luture sustainability,

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional sceplicsm Ihrougheut the audt, | alse:

+  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the slatement, whelher due 1o fraud or emor,
design and perfom awdit procedunes responsive to those rsks, and oblain awdit evidence thal is
sufficien] and appropriale lo provide a basis for my opinion. The sk of nof detecting & matesial
rmigsiaterment resulling from fraud is higher than lor cne resulling from error, as fraud may volve
collusion, forgery, inlentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the cvemide of internal confral.

. Obtain an understanding of infemal contnel relevint to the audit in arder to design audit procedures
thad are appropriabe in the crcumsiances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an opindon on the
affectiveness of the coundil's intemal control.

. Evaluale the approgrialéntess of accounting polices used and the reasonablenass of accounting
astimabes and ralaied disclosuras made by the council,

. Evaluale the overall presentalion, strecture and conent of the stadement, including the disclosures,
and whather the stalemeant reprasaents the undarying transactions and evends in a manner that
achieves fair presentalion,

I communicabe with the council regarding, among cther matiers, the planned scope and timing of the auds
and significant audi findings, incheding any significant deficiancies in intarnal contred that | idantify duning
my audit,

r i |_-||1E-.E"ﬁ|'-:;-w1 L
; i 3 8 0CT 200 |
K. Aot '_ J
o « Ay gERCE f

DAasTOL Gueensiand Audit Office
a5 delegate of e AuditonGeneral Brishana
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Long Term Financial Sustainability Statement

for the year ended 30 June 2017
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